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Monday, September 24, 2007


--- On commencing at 9:36 a.m.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Please be seated.


Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.  We are sitting today to hear an application by Canadian Renewable Energy Corporation to construct electricity transmission facilities which will connect the Wolfe Island wind project to the Hydro One transmission system.


This application was first made on February 1st, 2007. An amended application with routing changes was filed on May 28th, 2007.


The application has been given Board File No. EB-2007-0034.


My name is Cynthia Chaplin and I am the presiding member for this hearing.  With me are on the Panel are Pamela Nowina, Vice Chair of the Energy Board, and Bill Rupert, a member of the Ontario Energy Board.


May I have appearances, please?

Appearances


MS. WONG:  Good morning, Madam Chair.  My name is Sharon Wong.  I'm appearing for the applicant, Canadian Renewable Energy Corporation, and I have a panel of witnesses with me.  I will introduce them when we get to the witnesses.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Ms. Wong.


MR. RICCHETTI:  Madam Chair, Leonard Ricchetti on behalf of Invista (Canada) Company.  We are one of the landsowners over which the transmission facility is to go over.  I can advise you that I will probably remain silent for the balance of the hearing.  It appears that CREC and Invista have come to an agreement in principle and are just documenting it, so I will probably say very little else.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Mr. Ricchetti.


MS. ELLIOTT:  My name is Susan Elliott.  I am counsel for R. Paul Martin Construction Company Limited, and we were granted intervenor status.  Paul Martin, to my right, is -- I'm assisting him, so we have a little mix of self-represented and assisted that I hope won't be a nuisance to you all.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Donna Campbell for the Ontario Energy Board, assisted by Neil McKay, manager of facilities, and Edik Zwarenstein, who is the case manager.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Before we begin, I will remind parties that the scope of today's proceeding is determined by the issues list which was approved by the Board and attached to Procedural Order No. 4 dated August 27th, 2007.


Also, I will draw your attention to the Board's mandate in hearing and deciding this application.  Under section 96 of the Ontario Board Act, we are empowered to determine whether the proposed transmission facilities are in the public interest.


In determining whether the transmission facilities are in the public interest, we may only consider the interests of consumers with respect to prices and the reliability and quality of electricity service.


Other aspects of the public interest are beyond our mandate in this proceeding.  In addition, we do not have authority to set compensation or to address compensation-related matters, nor do we have authority over environmental matters.


It may also be helpful to know that we plan to take a short break this morning, perhaps around 11 o'clock, and we will break for lunch at around 1:00.  Are there any preliminary matters?

Procedural Matters


Ms. Campbell, have you had an opportunity to speak with the parties to determine an order for today's proceeding?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, I had an opportunity to speak with counsel for both of the parties who are present here.  Mr. Ricchetti told me that he promised to remain silent.  The other two indicate they wish to actually speak to the Panel.


And I believe the process that has been discussed is that the panel for Canadian Renewable Energy Corporation will be sworn and give their evidence under questioning by Ms. Wong.  I will then ask any questions I have, and Ms. Elliott or Mr. Martin will ask whatever questions they have of the panel, and then of course -- of the CREC panel, and then the Panel may ask questions also, finally, of that witness panel.


Following that, Mr. Martin will be sworn as a witness and will make an opening statement and certain -- be available to have questions asked of him by Ms. Wong, by myself, by Members of the Panel.


Then if for some reason Mr. Ricchetti has his instructions by then, we can hear from him.  Then we will move to closing submissions.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  Ms. Wong are you ready to proceed?

Opening Statement by Ms. Wong


MS. WONG:  I am, Madam Chair.  Before I get into the witnesses, perhaps we can just do an inventory of all of the evidence so that you have it handy.


There is the large binder with the prefiled evidence, and then there are five volumes containing answers to interrogatories.  I have numbered them for my own benefit in chronological order, so perhaps I could just sort of take you through those.


The first volume is a volume labelled "Answers to Interrogatories", and I actually call that volume 1 and 2, because there are two sets of interrogatories in there.  There is the answers to the first set of Board interrogatories, and then at tab B there are answers to the interrogatories posed by Utilities Kingston.


The second volume -- or third volume, excuse me, is the answers to interrogatories from R. Paul Martin Construction Company; the fourth volume, answers from Utilities Kingston, July 9, 2007.  The date is in the upper right-hand corner.


The fifth volume has gone missing from my own materials, so let me see if I can sort it out.  The fifth volume would be answers to Invista's interrogatories, and the sixth would be answers to the second set of Board Staff interrogatories.  That's it for the interrogatories.


The other volume that you should have -- actually, two other things.  One would be the Induced Voltage Study prepared by AMEC.  I have that in a black binder.  And the final thing would be the final System Impact Assessment that the IESO filed on August the 12th, which is in a separate volume.  Thank you.


I have with me a panel of three witnesses today.  On the far end, Mr. Robert Miller is a professional engineer and employed by Canadian Hydro Developers.  He is the project engineer responsible for managing the permitting and approvals process for the Wolfe Island Wind Project, and he holds a masters of science degree in environmental engineering.


In the middle is Mr. Byron Nicholson.  He is also a professional engineer.  He is a project manager and senior electrical engineer with AMEC, which is an engineering consulting firm, and Mr. Nicholson is here to speak to the induced voltage study which the applicant filed.


The third witness is Mr. Pinter, who is also a professional engineer.  He is employed by Canadian Hydro Developers as a registered professional engineer, and he is employed as the lead engineer and he has responsibility for the Wolfe Island project, in general.


Now, the CVs of all of the witnesses have been filed, and I presume the Panel has access to those.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Yes, we do.  Thank you.


MS. WONG:  Can I have the panellists sworn, please?


MS. CHAPLIN:  Will each of you come forward, one at a time, and Mr. Rupert will swear you in.

CANADIAN RENEWABLE ENERGY CORPORATION – PANEL 1

Robert Miller; Sworn

Byron Nicholson; Sworn

Jim Pinter; Sworn

Examination-In-Chief by Ms. Wong


MS. WONG:  Mr. Miller, Mr. Pinter, can I ask you to collectively affirm that the evidence, that your evidence for the purposes of these proceedings is found in the amended prefiled evidence and also in the various sets of interrogatories that have been filed.


MR. PINTER:  That is correct.


MR. MILLER:  Yes, that is correct.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Madam Chair, after the applicant filed the amended prefiled evidence, a few attachments were subsequently revised.  And what I would like to do now is just go through the revisions so that we're all clear on what the revisions were.


The first revision is at tab 16 of the prefiled evidence, the big black binder.  This is a revision to the form of easement agreement that we are asking the Board to approve as the standard form.


Last Friday, on September 21, my firm filed a revision with a letter of September 21 explaining the reasons for the change.  The letter explained that the reasons for the revisions was to make the easement an easement in gross, as opposed to a normal type of easement.


If you look at the second page of the letter, top of the page, I will just read for you what it says:

"However, under section 42.1 of the Electricity Act, a transmitter does not have to own a pertinent lands to have a valid easement.  Instead, a transmitter can take an easement in gross, which allows a transmitter to have an easement even if no dominant land is associated with the easement.  CREC has now amended its standard easement agreement to be an easement in gross rather than a normal easement."


If you flip through the material, you should actually find a copy of section 42.1 of the Electricity Act, which provides for that.  It is also -- on the very first page of the new easement agreement, there is a heading "Easement in gross" and in brackets there is a quotation from section 42.1.


Mr. Miller, can I ask you: that form of easement that was filed with the Board on September 21, is that the current standard form of easement that CREC offers to landowners?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, that's correct.


MS. WONG:  Do you adopt the information in the Blakes letter of September 21 as your evidence?  


MR. MILLER:  Yes, I do.  


MS. WONG:  Thank you.


The next revision is at tab 18; the original tab 18 was the first draft of -- first version of the system impact assessment report, and the one in the binder was dated October 10, 2006.  That has since been revised by the IESO, and a signed version can now be found in the first set of interrogatories, the one we marked as volume 1: Answers to interrogatories.  Sorry, that is the CIA.  I've got my notes mixed up for a second.


The final SIA is in a separate volume that was filed by the IESO on August 12, 2007.  I am just going to ask Mr. Pinter now to confirm that this is the final SIA.


Attached to that August 12th version, there was a letter from the IESO with some comments, and you should also have that, as well, because those comments are relevant.


Mr. Pinter, I understand that you were the person at CREC responsible for working with the IESO on the completion of the System Impact Assessment; is that correct?


MR. PINTER:  That's correct.  


MS. WONG:  Can you confirm that the SIA report dated August 12, 2007, is the final SIA report?


MR. PINTER:  That's correct, that's the final version.  


MS. WONG:  Thank you.


Could I ask everybody just to turn up page 3 of the report.  So that is the report itself, not the letter.  I am going to ask Mr. Pinter to read the last paragraph on page 3; just read it out loud, please.


MR. PINTER:  "From the information provided, our 

review concludes the proposed changes will not result in material adverse effect on the reliability of the IESO-controlled grid.  It is recommended that a Notification of Conditional Approval be issued for Wolfe Island wind generating station subject to the IESO receiving written acknowledgement that the requirements listed in this report will be implemented."


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  And do you understand that to still be the IESO's recommendation?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, I do.


MS. WONG:  And is it CREC's intention to comply with all of the requirements listed in the SIA report?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, it is.


MS. WONG:  Assuming that CREC complies with all of the recommendations in the report, will CRC's proposed transmission line have any adverse affects on the reliability and security of the Hydro One transmission grid?


MR. PINTER:  No, it will not. 


MS. WONG:  Are you aware of any reason why CREC would not be able to comply with any of the requirements?


MR. PINTER:  No, I am not.


MS. WONG:  The next revision is tab 19.  That is the CIA report, customer impact report.  That is found in -- the revised version -- is found in the first set of Answers to Interrogatories, the book we marked as Book 1, at tab 3.  


Mr. Pinter, once again were you the person that worked with Hydro One on the completion of the customer impact assessment report?  


MR. PINTER:  Yes, I was.  


MS. WONG:  Can you confirm that the CIA report dated March 22, 2007, is in fact the final CIA report?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, that's correct.


MS. WONG:  Could you turn up page 12, please?  I am going to ask you to read the four paragraphs underneath the conclusions on point 6. 


MR. PINTER:  "This Customer Impact Assessment Report 

presents results of voltage performance and short circuit-study analyses affected by the incorporation of Wolfe Island Wind Plant to be connected either to X2H, (n/o) normally open, or X4H, (n/c) normally closed circuits, via two-line taps about .2 kilometres from Kingston-Gardiner transformer station.  

"Load flow studies confirmed a strong system at Hinchinbrooke/Lennox transformer station with no apparent dip in the voltage profile indicating that it does provide post-contingency voltage support following the complete loss of Wolfe Island wind generation.    

"Short-circuit studies were carried out to determine the new projected fault levels at customer transmission connection points.  They showed minimal impact on present short-circuit levels for Kingston area customers.  These customers are recommended to use the fault levels contained in this Report to check the integrity of their facilities and equipment, and safety of their personnel, as the new generating facility gets incorporated in October, 2008.  

"Hydro One shall update the CIA report and advise Kingston-area customers if other generating projects apply for connection to Hydro One transmission system."


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Now, do you understand those paragraphs as representing Hydro One's current position with respect to the incorporation of the Wolfe Island wind project into the Hydro One grid?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, I do.  


MS. WONG:  Did the Customer Impact Assessment Report make any recommendations as to how the connection to the Wolfe Island plant should be made to the transmission system?


MR. PINTER:  There are some recommendations.  


MS. WONG:  Will you, or will CREC be following those recommendations?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, we will.  


MS. WONG:  Assuming that you follow the recommendations in the CIA report, did Hydro One express any concern about the Wolfe Island transmission line?


MR. PINTER:  No, they did not.


MS. WONG:  Thank you. 


The final tab that was revised was tab 21 of the main evidence; that is the project schedule.  And that revision was sent in a letter dated September 14, 2007. 


Do the Board Members have the new schedule?  This is the one dated -- or schedule R4, in the bottom left-hand corner, with a project completion date of December 19, 2008.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Did that come attached with the witness CVs?


MS. WONG:  It did.  I have extra copies if you are missing it.


MS. CHAPLIN:  No, I've got it.  Thank you.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  Mr. Miller, can you confirm that this is the current project schedule, and the anticipated in-service date for the Wolfe Island facility is December 19, 2008?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, that's correct.  


MS. WONG:  Those are all of the changes to the prefiled evidence.  Subject to those changes we just discussed, Mr. Miller and Mr. Pinter, do you adopt the prefiled evidence and the answers to the interrogatories as accurate and true?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, I do.


MR. MILLER:  Yes, I do.


MS. WONG:  Mr. Nicholson, you are from AMEC and your evidence for the purpose of these proceedings is the induced voltage study that was prepared by AMEC?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  That study was filed with the Board in a separate black binder. 


Can you confirm that you were involved in the preparation of that study?


MR. NICHOLSON:  I can.


MS. WONG:  And do you adopt that evidence for the purpose of these proceedings?


MR. NICHOLSON:  I do.


MS. WONG:  Thank you. 


What I propose to do at this point is to go through the evidence in a general overview, essentially in the order as set out in the issues list; have the witnesses affirm the evidence.  I think I will be an hour, at most.  I will turn the panel over for cross-examination.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you. 


MS. WONG:  Mr. Miller, can you turn up page 7 of tab 2 in the black binder, please.  The prefiled evidence, tab 2, page 7.


This is the section dealing with the need for the proposed facilities, and Mr. Miller, could you just explain to the Board in an overview why CREC needs this transmission line?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  Well, quite simply CREC responded to the Ontario Power Authority or Ministry of Energy's RFP 2, request for proposals number 2, for the supply of renewal green energy.  And we successfully won a contract with the OPA to supply power. 


The fact that the generation facility or the wind plant is on Wolfe Island requires a transmission line, which is approximately 12-1/2 kilometres long, to connect the Wolfe Island plant to the Hydro One transmission system on the mainland here, which is actually behind the Home Depot on Gardiners Road.  So that is essentially the overriding need for the transmission facility.


It very publicly stated that the Ontario government's goal is to supply 10 percent of the province's energy from renewables by 2010.  So this is one component of that goal.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Could you turn up to tab 7 in the prefiled evidence, please, and tell us what tab 7 is.


MR. MILLER:  This is the public news announcement of the Ontario government's approval of the new green power projects.  There were -- to date there have been two RFPs, requests for proposal.  RFP 1, the government awarded 395 megawatts of renewable energy, and then the Wolfe Island plant was part of RFP 2 and CREC was awarded 197.8 megawatts for a renewable energy supply contract for 20 years with the Ontario Power Authority, as part of RFP 2.  The government awarded 975 megawatts of renewable energy power contracts in RFP 2.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  If you look at the second page of tab 7, you will see there is a list of projects there that were awarded in RFP 2, and the Wolfe Island project is listed there.


It looks to me as if it is the largest of the nine that were approved in RFP 2; is that right?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct, yes.


MS. WONG:  Could you just read for us the three paragraphs immediately after the list of projects, the ones that start, "The government team".


MR. MILLER:  Certainly.

"The government team evaluated the proposals and an independent RFP fairness commissioner oversaw all aspects of the process.  Proposals were first evaluated to ensure they were complete and met the information requirements of the RFP.  Proposals that met this requirement were evaluated to ensure they met the minimum mandatory technical and financial requirements required by the RFP.  Projects that met these requirements were then ranked on the basis of total proposal price from lowest to highest.

"Based on this evaluation, the selected proponents have signed a contract with the Ontario Power Authority to supply renewable electricity capacity for a period of 20 years.  The government issued the RFP on April 22nd, 2004, seeking approximately 1,000 megawatts of renewable energy capacity.  They received 22 proposals, for a total of 2,029 megawatts in response.  The RFP was open to wind, water, solar, biomass and landfill gas projects.

"More detail on the RFP, including the RFP document itself, is available at the Ontario electricity RFP website."


MS. WONG:  Thank you.


Is that your understanding -- do those paragraphs accurately describe your understanding of how the RFP process worked?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.  It was a competitive bidding process.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  And can you explain to us your understanding of how the nine successful projects were chosen?


MR. MILLER:  Certainly.  The -- anyone responding to the RFP had to meet certain basic criteria, as it states in the press release, being -- and those criteria included technical and financial requirements.  You had to prove that you were technically competent.  You had to have the expertise to build these facilities, and that you also had the financial resources.


Once those criteria were met, then as part of the RFP, I believe it was essentially the brown envelope.  Envelopes were opened and bid prices were evaluated, and the lowest prices -- the lowest-priced bids were selected and awarded contracts.


We do know that the weighted average cost of the bids -- or the Ministry of Energy has told us that the weighted average cost of all of the bids was, I believe, on the order of 8.7 cents per kilowatt-hour.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Now I am just going to go through the transmission route with you and ask how you came about to choose that route.  And what I propose to do is go through the various maps that have been filed and hopefully we will cover the route that way.


So could we start by looking at tab 4.  That is an overview map.  And at the end point of the route is the Hydro One Gardiner transformer station in Kingston.  Could you tell us why that was chosen as the end point to make the interconnection with Hydro One.


MR. MILLER:  Certainly.  Our goal, in terms of selecting the proposed transmission line route, was to do it as directly as possible on open land or greenfield or, in some cases, brownfield development, through industrial commercial lands.


The route that was selected on the Kingston mainland 

-- first of all, lands at a point known as Sand Bay, which is owned by Invista, and we traverse Invista's land, and then DuPont's land.  Would we cross over what is labelled as Front Road, and then we're paralleling an existing 44 kV Hydro One distribution line on Correctional Services Canada lands for approximately two kilometres.  Again, it is open agricultural farmland right now.


Then we traverse Bath Road and come up along the backs of some commercial properties to a point of interconnection with the Gardiner Road transformer station.


So the criteria we used for it was minimizing distance, the least disruptive and most logical route from a land-use perspective.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  The starting point we see on the map as the X on Wolfe Island, and the prefiled evidence indicates that this will be a customer transformer station located on private lands owned by Gregory MacDonald and Yvonne Roberts.


Could you tell us why you chose that as the starting point for the transmission line and the location for the customer transformer station?


MR. MILLER:  We're 600 metres off of the shore, south of the shore.  Obviously, there would be advantages to being close to the shore, but in recognition of residents and cottages on the shoreline, we were 600 metres off the shore.


Our wind plant collector system, the 34.5 kV collector system, terminates at the X on the map, which is the transformer station, our customer transformer station.


Again, this was, in essence, the closest jumping-off point to get the submarine cable into the water to then make the connection over at Sand Bay so we were minimizing the distance.  We couldn't go further west because of Simcoe Island, and there were really no viable alternatives east of this position.


MS. WONG:  Okay.


MR. MILLER:  It does logically follow Concession Road No. 4, which provides direct access to the water and to the shoreline.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  How did CREC choose the route for the submarine, the underwater portion of the transmission line?  Did you do any testing?


MR. MILLER:  We did.  We commissioned a company out of Atlantic Canada called -- named Canadian Seabed Research.  So they did very detailed bisymmetry analysis, side scanning sonar, and surveyed essentially a 100-metre swath along the proposed route of the Lake Ontario-St. Lawrence Seaway river bed between the shoreline and Sand Bay.


MS. WONG:  And the decision to come up in Sand Bay, was that was of any constraints underwater?


MR. MILLER:  There are no constraints we found in what's locally referred to as the lower gap.  However, when we get towards the Kingston mainland, there are several constraints.  Carruthers Point, which is directly east of where we land in Sand Bay, has got -- there is actually a water plant, an intake facility for Invista, and they have water intakes coming off Carruthers Point.


There is also a Utilities Kingston sewage treatment plant on Carruthers Point, or just at the base of Carruthers Point, and there is an outfall, a sewage outfall.


Then we move west of the landing point at Sand Bay.  There is a Utilities Kingston water-treatment plant with intakes there, as well.  And most importantly from our perspective, up in the Sand Bay, there is an existing 8.3 kV Hydro One distribution line.  It's an above-ground pole line, and then runs down a riser to a submarine cable which runs out of Sand Bay and connects with Simcoe Island.


In our discussions with Hydro One, we were explicitly told that we could not cross that distribution line.


MS. WONG:  So the current routing avoids all of those constraints?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  The current routing, as far as we can tell today, avoids all of those constraints.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Could we go to the map at tab 11, please?  That map is in a sleeve.  You can take the map out of the sleeve and open it up fully.  Tab 11.


Could you tell us which of the coloured lines on tab 11 represents the CREC transmission line?


MR. MILLER:  Certainly.  The dotted green line is the submarine cable coming up into Sand Bay.  Sand Bay is not labelled.  That area is Sand Bay. 


The solid green line is, then, the mainland high-voltage cable, which is to be buried.  It comes up on to Invista land, goes straight north for a section, makes a left, 90-degree turn, basically going straight west over towards Sunnyacres Road.   Then we cross a property line boundary, and we're on to EI Dupont Canada Limited's lands.  We head straight north.  We have a road crossing at Front Road, and then we're on to the Correctional Services Canada lands, the penitentiary lands, heading straight north for approximately two kilometres.


MS. WONG:  Sorry, go ahead.


MR. MILLER:  Then you can see the orange lines; there are three Hydro One submarine cables in the water already out in Sand Bay.  Then the line that comes from the shore of Sand Bay west is an above-ground pole line.  And again that is on Invista property.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Can you explain to us the procedure which led up to CREC proposing the route that we see on this map for tab 11, specifically the route across the Invista lands.


MR. MILLER:  Well, we were in negotiations with, first of all, Utilities Kingston -- you can see their water-treatment plant -- and then Invista, the private landowner, to try to arrive at a route that would be acceptable to both parties.


Originally, as the Board may know, the original route that we proposed was around Utilities Kingston's water-treatment plant.  That was not preferred, or unacceptable, for two reasons.  First, it would have crossed Hydro One's submarine cable out in Sand Bay.  Then secondly, Utilities Kingston has, or will be at some point in the future, expanding their water-treatment plant.  They objected to the transmission line being put in right around their property line.


So we met -- myself, CREC, myself, Rob Miller and Ross Keating, the president of Canadian Hydro, met with Utilities Kingston and Invista, I believe it was on May 24th at their offices.  This was the preferred route that we were asked to follow and file with the OEB after that meeting, that balanced the private landowners' interests, as well as made accommodation for Utilities Kingston's future planned expansion of the water-treatment plant.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  I believe there was an answer to an interrogatory specifically dealing with those discussions, and I will just identify those for the Board now.


It is in the volume of interrogatories that we have marked as five, answers from Invista Canada Company, or answers to Invista's interrogatories. 


The specific question was question 7(ii) on page 8, page 8 of the answers.  If we could all turn that up.  Page 8. 


Could I ask you, Mr. Miller, to read the question, (ii), then read the answer. 


MR. MILLER:  Yes. 

"CREC states that it met with Invista and Utilities Kingston to discuss the proposed route, and they advised CREC that this is their preferred routing.  When did Invista provide this?  Are there any documents, correspondence or notes with respect to this meeting?"


The answer is as follows:

"CREC met with Utilities Kingston and Invista on May 24th, 2007.  Invista said if the transmission line had to come ashore in Sand Bay, because of the existing Hydro One submarine line, then the route now being proposed was Invista's preferred route over the other options from Sand Bay.  Ross Keating and Robert Miller of CREC attended the meeting.  A copy of Robert Miller's notes for the meeting are attached as Tab 10.  

"Robert Miller also circulated an e-mail, with an attached letter and road map, to Invista and Utilities Kingston, summarizing the outcome of the meeting.  This correspondence is attached as tab 11." 


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  I won't bother taking the Panel to those attachments; they're there.  But Mr. Miller, could I just ask you: was Utilities Kingston at that meeting as well?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, they were there, Jim Miller and Jim Keech. 


MS. WONG:  Did they have any comment about the proposed routing?


MR. MILLER:  Their, again, preference was -- or their main point was that the water-treatment plant will be expanded at some point in the future and they wanted recognition of that fact.


MS. WONG:  And this proposed routing allows them to expand the water-treatment plant?


MR. MILLER:  It does, yes.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Going back to the map at tab 11 that we were just looking at, the proposed route goes north and crosses Front Road and continues north on land owned by Corrections Canada.


Can you explain why you chose that portion of the route, the portion across the Corrections Canada lands.


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  You can see that there is, from the legend, there is the orange line and it is an existing distribution line.  It is a Hydro One 44 kV line that does already -- above-ground line that traverses the CSC lands.  So it made sense and it was logical for us to parallel that existing easement.


It was, again, the most direct and efficient use of the land or direct route.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  We can put that one away and go to the next map, which is 12(a).  That is the map that will show the portion over the Corrections Canada lands.


Can you just briefly take us through this one.  I think you have explained most of it already, but just so we know what we're looking at.


MR. MILLER:  This is the map of the Correctional Services Canada lands.  It is a linear, two-kilometre route and it does, again, parallel the 44 kV Hydro One distribution line, the above-ground pole line.  And it basically runs all the way from Front Road up to Bath Road.  


MS. WONG:  Does Utilities Kingston have any infrastructure in this area?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, they do.  There is a sewer line that is up -- I guess if you're looking at it face up, it is on the sort of left quarter of the page, and it essentially traverses, or will be traversing that sewer line at 90 degrees.


MS. WONG:  So you only cross it at one point?  It doesn't parallel you in any way?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  We can put that one away. 


Our final map is the one at 12(b).  Can you tell us what this map shows.


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  This is the section of the transmission line that is north of Bath Road, which is going to get us connected to the Gardiner transformer station.


So we have to do a little bit of a right-hand turn, a bit of a jog, a short fifty-metre jog to get on the east side of the Royal Bank property.  That Globe Realty Holdings property is actually a Royal Bank.  What we propose to run on that property is actually in a grassed median.


Then the Canadian Renewable Energy Corporation property is actually a Union Gas property that CREC purchased.  We're going to run on a diagonal across the back of that property.  It is a gravel parking lot right now, a storage yard at this point in time.


Then we would like a 20-metre easement across R. Paul Martin Construction Company's lands.  There is a defunct or barricaded 20-metre laneway or roadway there. 


And then we have agreements with the Taubs, Mecyva Holdings, or agreements are in place to cross Canadian National Railway.  It is, I believe, mile 178 in their system.  


We have agreement from Hydro One to connect directly within their transformer station.


 MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Now you mentioned that the 

R. Paul Martin laneway is a defunct laneway.  What do you mean by that?


MR. MILLER:  Well, at this point it is not used and it is barricaded at the very eastern edge, if you were to connect the property line across.  It parallels the transmission line.


MS. WONG:  So as far as you know, no one is currently using that laneway?


MR. MILLER:  As far as I know, that's correct; right.


MS. WONG:  How wide is that laneway?


MR. MILLER:  I believe it is 20 metres wide, and that is the easement we're requesting.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  Mr. Pinter, assuming that the transmission line is constructed underneath the Martin laneway, would the Martin Company be able to continue using that laneway for traffic needs?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, they would.


MS. WONG:  Would the presence of the transmission line under the laneway interfere in any way with the use of the road, or the laneway as a road?


MR. PINTER:  No, it would not.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  I think we're finished with the routing for the moment.  We can put the maps away. 


I am just going to briefly discuss the associated facilities.  With respect to the modifications needed to the Gardiner transformer station, that is discussed on page 22 of the prefiled evidence, if we could turn that up, please.


So tab 2, page 22.  Excuse me, page 23.  There is a paragraph at the very end of page 23 that is underlined.  Mr. Pinter, could you read that for us, please, out loud.


MR. PINTER:  "At the request of Hydro One, CREC has 

agreed to an interconnection within Hydro One's Gardiner transformer station approximately 500 metres north of Bath Road."


MS. WONG:  Just hold on a minute.  Perhaps -- the Board members seem to be having trouble finding it.


MS. CHAPLIN:  I think we were looking at the original version.


MS. WONG:  Oh, I'm sorry.


MR. PINTER:  "At the request of Hydro One, CREC has 

agreed to an interconnection within Hydro One's Gardiner TS approximately 500 metres north of Bath Road.  The interconnection will be designed, built, owned and operated by Hydro One, but CREC will pay for the components of the interconnect that are deemed to be direct connect costs and not network upgrades.  The main advantage to this connection configuration is that the design is under the direct control of Hydro One and will therefore meet Hydro One's requirements.  Also, the interconnect will occupy a smaller footprint and is a mutually acceptable solution for both CREC and Hydro One."


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Has Hydro One expressed any concerns to CREC about the needed modifications to the transformer station?


MR. PINTER:  No, they have not.


MS. WONG:  Is it expected that Hydro One will be able to make those modifications without any problems?


MR. PINTER:  Yes.


MS. WONG:  With respect to the rest of the transmission facilities, such as the customer transformer station on Wolfe Island and the cable splices between the submarine portion and the underground portion, have any of the reviewing authorities, like the IESO or Hydro One, expressed any concern about those facilities?


MR. PINTER:  No, they have not.


MS. WONG:  Is it intended that the transmission line will be designed and constructed to meet all of the applicable standards and laws, including federal, provincial and municipal?


MR. PINTER:  Yes, that is the intent.


MS. WONG:  Are you aware of any reason why you will not be able to meet any specific law or standard?


MR. PINTER:  No.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  What I propose to do now is just turn briefly to turn to the induced voltage study, and that will be Mr. Nicholson.  That will be in that separate black binder.  


For the benefit of the Board, as far as I understand it, no one is taking issue with the study, so we're just going to touch on it very briefly, and if people have specific questions, they can ask.  But my understanding is this study was requested by Utilities Kingston, and Utilities Kingston is satisfied and have no objections or no issues with it.


Mr. Nicholson, can you explain to the Board what the purpose of the induced voltage study was.


MR. NICHOLSON:  The intent of the induced voltage study was to review the impact of current flowing on the CREC transmission line on to the Utilities Kingston water pipelines, and to ensure that it is safe and does not cause any impact in maintenance or ongoing operations of the pipe.


MS. WONG:  Can you give us a layperson's explanation as to what induced voltage is and what causes it.


MR. NICHOLSON:  Induced voltage on the pipe is a result of the rate of change of a magnetic flux created by current flowing in a conductor.


There are a significant number of parameters that will impact how much it is, but directly -- it is basically directly proportional to the amount of current flowing in the conductor.  It's basing from -- between the conductor and the pipeline, the length that runs in parallel with the content of the pipeline, the material, the resistivity, permeability, soil resistivity, the location of the cable and pipe, whether it is above ground, below ground.


I think that is...


MS. WONG:  Let me see if I can sort of break that down for us.  The conductor in this case is the transmission line, the CREC transmission line?


MR. NICHOLSON:  The CREC insulated buried cable.


MS. WONG:  That insulated buried cable with current flowing through it will cause induced voltages or can cause induced voltages on metallic pipelines in the vicinity?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  So this study was to determine what voltages would be caused or induced on the Utilities Kingston pipelines?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  Is there a standard in place that CREC has to meet?


MR. NICHOLSON:  The Canadian Standards Association, the CSA, has a standard C22.3, number 6, that is titled "Principles and Practices of Electrical Coordination Between Pipelines and Electrical Supply Lines".


And this falls within that and meets the requirements listed in that standard.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  So the purpose of this study was to determine whether or not the transmission line would cause voltages on the Utilities Kingston line and whether it would be within the acceptable limits of the CSA standard?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  And, in general, what were the results of the study?


MR. NICHOLSON:  The results of the study indicated that we're well below the 15 volts, that the standard requires, no mitigation.  We did some analysis to test our assumptions and on how long.  We varied the length of parallel, the soil resistivity and several other parameters, to find how much impact it would have, and it had very little impact on the overall results, which were significantly below the 15 volts that are measured.


MS. WONG:  So just so I am clear, you did it based upon current design expectations?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  And you were well below the CSA standard?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Yes.


MS. WONG:  And then you changed some of the parameters and made it -- for instance, you changed the soil resistivity parameters and you increased the length of the paralleling?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  That was really just to check; a safety factor, if you will?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Yes.


MS. WONG:  You were still well below the CSA standard?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  I think those are all of the questions I have for Mr. Nicholson on that point.


Mr. Miller, I would like to speak to you briefly with respect to some land matters.  At this point, I just plan on taking the Panel and Mr. Miller through the proposed agreements so we can identify those.


Can you turn up tab 14, please, of the amended prefiled evidence; tab 14.


This is the standard form of option for surface lease, and, if you turn over a couple of pages, you will see there is an attachment as an exhibit, and that is the actual form of lease that is attached to the option.


Mr. Miller, could I just ask you to identify, is this the standard option and lease that CREC offers to parties?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, it is.  That's correct.


MS. WONG:  And the only people along the proposed transmission route who would be entering into such a lease and option would be the owners of the land on Wolfe Island where the customer transformer station will be built; is that right?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. WONG:  And those people have already signed this option?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, they have.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Can you go to the next tab, then, tab 15.  This document is called the agreement to grant easement and right-of-way agreement.  This is essentially an option to grant an easement in return for an option fee.


Mr. Miller, is this the standard option agreement that CREC is offering to landowners along the route where you are seeking easements?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, it is.


MS. WONG:  The last standard form of agreement is 

tab 16.  We touched on that on this already this morning.  That's the easement in gross.  We've done the revision last Friday.  I don't propose to go through that again, because we have already asked and answered all of those questions with respect to the easement in gross.


Now, just turning briefly to consultations with landowners.  There is quite a lot of evidence of the consultations in the prefiled material, and I will just touch on it and point it out.


Could you turn to page 24 of tab 2, please.  Pages 24 to 27 summarize the community and stakeholder consultations.


Mr. Miller, could I just ask you to briefly summarize for the Board what consultations have taken place with the community.


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  The largest public open houses or meetings that we've had have been related to the environmental screening process, under the MOE's regulation 116/01, which is the environmental assessment for electricity projects in Ontario.


So in March of 2007 and in March of 2006, there have actually been two rounds of public open houses to discuss the project, and gather stakeholder comments and questions regarding the project.  So that was for the environmental assessment. 


In addition to that, in January of this year -- towards the end of January -- CREC held a community meeting for what's known as the Sunnyacres community.  Initially there was – historically, there was concern regarding the transmission line route.  It was originally above-ground and it was originally along Sunnyacres Road.


When we met with them and showed them, or explained to the residents that the transmission line was underground and on private lands, there were no concerns.


I would also like to mention that prior to the two public open houses that CREC, which is the wholly owned subsidiary of Canadian Hydro, had in March of 2006 and again in March of 2007, there was historical community and stakeholder consultation. 


Canadian Hydro bought the project interests from Gaia Power, as well as what is known as the original CREC; it was a different group.  And there were open houses and public information available as early as 2002, regarding both of those stand-alone, separate projects. 


What Canadian Hydro did was buy the interests of both those smaller projects, and create the larger project that is before us today.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Just with respect to those earlier community consultations, could you turn to tab 17 of the binder, please.


What is tab 17?  Maybe you could just walk us through it quickly.


MR. MILLER:  Sure.  It is -- as it says, it is a historical context to the project's development. 


The genesis of the project -- or the public notification, the first public notification was back on October 14th, 2002, when Gaia Power announced that they were putting a wind plant on the island, and that was all part of the environmental screening process.


In January 2005, Canadian Hydro purchased all of the shares of CREC.  And you know, as I mentioned previously, we had our open house, our first open house, in March of 2006, and then again in March of 2007.


The original CREC, as it was proposed, was a smaller 24-megawatt project.  Gaia Power was 36 megawatts.  CREC, the original CREC, went from 24 megawatts to 100 megawatts.  And the history is laid out on all of those pages.


MS. WONG:  As the various projects proceeded, there were various community consultations along the way?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.


MS. WONG:  Would it be fair to say there have been consultations since 2002?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  Yes, many meetings, workshops, public open houses.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  With respect to consultations with the First Nations, I would like to turn to the Interrogatories. Specifically, the first set which we called volume 1, Answers to Interrogatories.  It has seven tabs.


If you look at page 32 of 38, at Tab A -- the very beginning, page 32 -- Board Staff asked a series of questions relating to First Nation consultations.  And the questions are set out at question 14; and then, starting on page 33, are the answers to the various questions.


Mr. Miller, could you read for us the answer to question 8 on page 33.


MR. MILLER:  Yes.

"Based upon the recommendations of the Ontario Secretariat for Aboriginal Affairs (OSAA), and Indian and Northern Affairs Canada (INAC), CREC has engaged the Mohawks of the Bay of Quinte, the MBQ, in the environmental screening process.  CREC has also notified the Association of Iroquois and Allied Indians, as well as the Union of Ontario Indians."


MS. WONG:  Has the main engagement been with the Mohawks of the Bay of Quinte?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.  The Mohawks of Bay of Quinte have been identified as the First Nation with a potential interest in the area, and we have been meeting with them and negotiating with them exclusively.


MS. WONG:  Have the Mohawks of the Bay of Quinte expressed any opposition to the Wolfe Island wind project?


MR. MILLER:  No; in fact, they have participated as part of the review of the draft environmental review report, and they have provided a favourable review of the project, in general.  They see merit in it, and commented that they thought it was of environmental benefit.


MS. WONG:  We will get to those comments in a minute, but just before we do that, would you turn the page to page 34, please.


We see at page 34, 35 and 36 there is a chart.  Can you tell us what that chart is.


MR. MILLER:  It's a brief summary of the ongoing dialogue that has been between CREC and the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte and other government agencies. 


You can see that we have been working with the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte since July of 2004, and this just is a summary of letters, e-mails and phone conversations with the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte, as well as the Union of Ontario Indians and the Association of Iroquois and Allied Indians, and the various other government agencies like INAC and OSAA.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  On page 36, could you read for us the answer to question C.


MR. MILLER:  Yes. The answer to question is:

"According to information provided by OSAA, Crown law office and all branches of INAC, there are no active land claims or litigation within the project area.  Save the Correctional Services Canada lands and crossing of municipal roads, the project is being implemented on private lands."


MS. WONG:  Is that your current information: that there are no current active land claims involving this project?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  The Board asked subsequently for an update of the interrogatory responses, and that update can be found in the Staff interrogatories from July 27, 2007.  That is volume 6 of the interrogatories.  Can you turn to page 10 of that set of answers.


Mr. Miller, read for us please the answer to A15.  


MR. MILLER:  Okay.

"CREC has been engaged in discussions with the leaders of the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte, the MBQ, since 2004, and continues to be actively engaged with the MBQ.  The MBQ are fully aware of the proposed project.  A summary of the earlier discussions with the MBQ can be found in the draft ERR, which -- "

The binder is here in front of me.

"A copy of the draft ERR is at tab 8 to the answers to Invista's interrogatories.  

"In March 2007, senior representatives of CREC met with Chief and Council of the MBQ to present a project overview, and there has been subsequent written dialogue with the MBQ.  

"The MBQ have reviewed the draft ERR and commented favourably on the proposed project.  See letter of June 22nd, 2004, attached at tab 4.  One of the aims of CREC's discussions with the MBQ is to obtain the MBQ's written acknowledgement that the Crown's obligations to consult have been satisfied.  

"CREC have twice served the MBQ with notice of the application for leave to construct, as required by the Board's Letter of Direction, and the MBQ have chosen not to participate in the OEB proceeding in any way."


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Now, your answer refers to a letter at tab 4.  Can we turn that up, please.  This is a letter to you from the Mohawks of the Bay of Quinte; is that right?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. WONG:  And the second page of that document is the actual text of the letter.  Could you tell us basically what this letter is about.


MR. MILLER:  We issued the draft environmental review report to stakeholders, agencies and interested parties, and it was back in -- I believe it was May 18th.  It was the beginning of the May long weekend.  So it arrived, I think, on people's doorsteps Tuesday, May 22nd.  The Mohawks of Bay of Quinte reviewed the draft environmental review report, and this letter is a summary of their, again, what we view as favourable comments on the environmental assessment, as well as the project itself.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Mr. Pinter, I meant to ask you a question when we were dealing with the technical matters and forgot, so I will ask you now.


Could you describe for us how the transmission line will be monitored and whether there is any need for any additional monitoring.


MR. PINTER:  The transmission line will be -- is monitored at both ends by electronic protection relays.  They're very sensitive devices that detect any anomalies in the characteristics of the line and will remove the line from service if there is a problem.


MS. WONG:  And who does that monitoring?


MR. PINTER:  Hydro One and both CREC monitor the line from both ends.


MS. WONG:  And when you say that it will detect problems, what -- potentially what kind of problems could those be?


MR. PINTER:  For instance, if the insulation of the cable itself breaks down, there is a ground wire around the outside of the cable that is part of the assembly, and, if the cable broke down, the voltage would come in contact with that ground wire and it would remove the cable from service.


Also, there is protection called differential, which, basically, it monitors what goes in one end and what comes out the other end of the cable, and it is very sensitive.


So if power goes into one end of the cable and doesn't come out the other, which means that it is leaking, then the cable would, again, be removed from service.


MS. WONG:  Perhaps you could just describe for us, when the cable is buried, how far underground is it buried.


MR. PINTER:  It is buried at 1.2 metres below surface.


MS. WONG:  Is the cable itself covered or encased in anything?  


MR. PINTER:  The cable itself is buried in sand bedding to protect it from mechanical damage, and then above that there will be 100-millimetre layer of concrete that is dyed red for identification in case someone digs in that area.  Then above that, there will be a warning tape that is placed above the concrete, so if anybody digs down towards the cable, they will see the warning tape first, identifying to them that there is buried cable below that portion.


Then the concrete provides mechanical protection, so if it is a backhoe, they won't be able to come into contact with the cable if they're digging in that area.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  Those are all of my questions for the witnesses.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  Ms. Campbell, were you intending to go first, or Mr. Martin?

Cross-Examination by Ms. Campbell


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, and I think we only have one question right now, a clarification question.



My question, first of all, is for Mr. Pinter, and it has to do with the AMEC report.  I am about to be told exactly what our concerns are.  It is found on page 5 of 32.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Is this the final version?


MS. CAMPBELL:  The final version of the pipeline induced voltage study that came in the black binder that was delivered on Friday.


So at the very top of the figure, you will see phase A, and then it says phase A, and then it says phase C; is that correct?


MR. NICHOLSON:  That is a typing error.


MS. CAMPBELL:  A typing error.  So what it should read?


MR. NICHOLSON:  A, B and C.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Excellent.  And the B should be where?


MR. NICHOLSON:  I believe it is -- we're not 100 percent sure.  We have made some assumptions where it is physically.  They could be A, B, C at the top left or right.  For the analysis, it really doesn't matter.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  So what you're telling me, and this is all I am really concerned about, this is a typographical error, but it does not affect the substance of the report?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So if I change one of the As to a B, it does not alter any of the conclusions or findings in the report?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Correct.  You can change either "A" to a "B", and it doesn't matter.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  Thank you.


The second question is quite minor.  Mr. Miller, it is addressed to you.  In your direct evidence, you talked about the length of the route, the transmission route, as being approximately 12-1/2 kilometres.  In the notice it was approximately 12.  Does anything turn on that?  Has there been a change that we should know about, or is your approximation a little bit better than it was when you filed the notice?


MR. MILLER:  We have interchangeably used 12 or 12-1/2.  I think it's somewhere in between.  We know it is about 600 metres on the mainland.  Where we get the variation I believe is on the submarine cable.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.


MR. MILLER:  Because of the route change further up into Sand Bay, and then the route change on Invista's property.


We do have detailed drawings now, engineered drawings that we can very accurately predict the length or, you know, provide the length.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  The final question has to do with the underwater route.  It has always been contemplated that there would be obviously a submarine aspect to this.


When you changed the route and you refiled the application in May, I didn't see that there were any areas that the waterbed study were affected.  Is there a reason for that?


MR. MILLER:  CREC has actually commissioned Canadian Seabed Research again, and we actually have a new report that -- where they re-surveyed the amended route.  It was very similar to the original survey.  And there were no identified artefacts.  


One of the things, like, for example, Parks Canada was interested in was shipwrecks, that kind of thing.  We've delineated and determined that there were no shipwrecks, and the characteristics of the bottom, you know, bedrock and sand, that kind of thing, were almost identical.


And that is available.  I don't know if we filed that.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Do you intend on filing it?  It sounds to me like it is an updated study.


MR. MILLER:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  And will you be filing that?


MS. WONG:  We will undertake to file that.  Is it available already, Mr. Miller?


MR. MILLER:  Yes, it is available.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Can you tell me when that was done?


MR. MILLER:  I cannot remember.  It was done fairly recently.  First of all, the ice had to come out before the boats or the ships could come up from Atlantic Canada.  So there was a bit of a delay waiting for the weather.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  So what you're telling me is that there was an updated seabed route study, but it contains no significant substantive changes from the study that has been filed, and there is nothing that is material that this Panel should be aware of when considering the application that has been changed by that?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I would ask -- I believe, Ms. Wong, you said that you would undertake to file the updated seabed study?


MS. WONG:  Yes, we will.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Can we give that a number.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.  Can we give it K1?  That will be the undertaking to file the updated seabed study.

UNDERTAKING NO. K1:  TO PROVIDE THE UPDATED SEABED STUDY


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you very much.  Those are my questions.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell.  Mr. Martin, Ms. Elliott, would you like to go next?


MS. ELLIOTT:  Thank you.  Mr. Martin has some questions and, depending what they are, I may have others.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay, thank you.  Why don't you go ahead, Mr. Martin.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Martin


MR. MARTIN:  Thank you, Madam Chair.


The transfer station, if it was located at Wolfe Island, would it be more reliable than having to go through the transmission over to the Gardiners Road transmission station, if you had it located right on Wolfe Island?


MR. PINTER:  I'm not sure if I understand the question totally.  Are you talking about the Gardiner interconnection?


MR. MARTIN:  Yes.


MR. PINTER:  The line has to be -- we have to interconnect the wind farm into the Hydro One grid somewhere.  So there has to be a tap point into the lines.  


So originally it was proposed that we were going to put our own customer switching station adjacent to Gardiner, which would have had circuit breakers, and we would tap into the line; and then subsequently, in discussions with Hydro One, it was decided that it would be better if we integrated that point directly into their transformer station.


That decision was partially fuelled by the fact that they're doing an upgrade now on that transformer station.  They're adding two transformers to the existing facilities.


So it was in the best interest if -- for their expansion, they actually have to tap into the lines again, into the X2H and X4H lines.  So instead of us tapping in once again, we could literally tap off of their tap.


So the station, as you call it, has to be at the Hydro One line.  It can't be -- we actually have a station on the Wolfe Island, with transformers where we step the voltage up.


So both facilities are required.  It can't be moved, so to speak.


MR. MILLER:  If I may?  The island infrastructure is distribution, so that means it is 50 kV or less.  And when we bid in with the request for proposal, it was for the transmission system, which is the high-voltage system in Ontario.  So that is 500 kVA, 230 kVA or 125 -- or sorry, 115 kV.  


The line we're building -- because 200 megawatts is a significant amount of power – the plant we're building on Wolfe Island cannot connect to the existing infrastructure on Wolfe Island.  Therefore we're constructing our own 12-1/2-kilometre high-voltage transmission line to get that power to the transmission grid.  It's kind of a different set of wires.  There is the high-voltage transmission versus local, more local distribution.


All of the power that we consume in Kingston, and the same for Wolfe Island, is actually stepped down from the Gardiners Road transformer station – Cataraqui, I believe, transformer station -- to a lower voltage.  So they're completely different systems.


MR. MARTIN:  So what you're telling me, then, is that a station cannot be built on Wolfe Island that would serve into the Ontario Hydro grid; is that correct?


MR. PINTER:  That's correct.  There is no infrastructure in place on the island to accept that amount of power.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Can I ask a supplementary question, there.  From what Mr. Miller just said, you're stepping up the power on the island; the turbines are generating, I think you said.  Because it is then high voltage, you have to run it across the bay and into the Hydro.  What if you didn't step it up there?  Could you not just distribute it more easily somehow into the network, without all of these high-voltage lines?


MR. PINTER:  No.  You need load to consume the power.  So there is no local load on the island to consume the power, so you have to transmit it out to the grid, where then it will get consumed by load customers.


That amount of power has to be injected into the high-voltage system in order to be consumed.


MS. ELLIOTT:  I didn't state the question very well.  


MR. PINTER:  Okay.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Sorry, your language is really foreign to me.  When you step up -- make it into high voltage on the island, could you not carry what is generated by the wind farm somewhere onto the mainland at whatever voltage it is, and step it up just at the Hydro transformer station?  Then you wouldn't have all of these high voltage lines running around.


MR. PINTER:  Byron, you can explain.  


MR. NICHOLSON:  There are several advantages to transforming the voltage from 44 kV, or 34-1/2 kV which is the collector system, to 230,000 volts.


The biggest issue is power at 200 megawatts.  If you have higher voltage you have less current.  So at 44 kV, which is what you would have to connect into Gardiner if you were going to do it, is over 2-1/2 thousand amps.  The impact on the induction study would be extremely significant, because the induced voltage on the pipelines, as a for instance, is current-dependent.  So we're going from 500 amps to 2-1/2 thousand amps.  So it would be five times as great, which is beginning to become difficult to manage.


At 230 kV, you have a lot less induced voltages, magnetic fluxes, fields.  So that is one. 


The second is: to carry 2-1/2 to 3,000 amps, you're going to need multiple cables, multiple circuits, like four or five or six instead of the single circuit that is carried on 230 kV.


So to get that much power off of the island, you have to have cables, submarine cables, and you have to do it at a given voltage.  The choice of voltages is either 44, which goes into the Gardiner TS -- they would then have to, Hydro One would then have to put in dedicated transformers at their end to convert it from 44 to 230 -- or we do it at Wolfe Island end, and just tie directly in.  Both economically and practically and for a number of other reasons, it's better to do it at 230 kV.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Okay.  Thank you.


MR. MARTIN:  Is this the only transformer station in the city of Kingston that you can tap into, or are there others?


MR. NICHOLSON:  There is another one, it's called Frontenac TS.  The background history.  Before Canadian Hydro bought CREC and Gaia Power, I did preliminary engineering work for them, for connecting both of these projects into the Hydro One system.


Frontenac is difficult to get to; you have got to go up through the river up here.  There is a huge number of environmental issues.  It's only at 115 kV.  You would have difficulty handling the amount of power that we're talking about.  It's an older station.  


We also looked at connecting into, on the other side of -- over by Royal Military College, at a lower voltage as well.  Again, that was at lower power outputs, at like 24 or 30 megawatts.  Again, that was not doable.  At 200 megawatts, it is totally unrealistic to put that much power on the low voltage system.


So, yes, in the preliminary stages, before Canadian Hydro took over these projects, there were reviews about trying to connect into Frontenac, but it had enormous technical and environmental issues compared to the proposed solution.


MR. MARTIN:  So a new transformer station.  Can it be built closer to, I guess, the water, so that you don't have to take these transmission lines up through the city?  And still have that ability to --


MR. NICHOLSON:  You still have to connect to the lines at Gardiner TS, no matter which way you cut it.  That is the closest connection to Hydro One's transmission system. 


Wherever you put the transformer station, the transformer station is actually on Wolfe Island, which is where it is converted to 230 kV; and then, in a single cable, comes under the water and is connected into the transmission system that Hydro One owns at Gardiner.


So you can't -- the actual transformer station is on Wolfe Island, and then there is a connection between there and Hydro One's system -- a physical connection, copper wires -- that makes the connection.  


Moving a transformer station isn't going to change that.  No matter what voltage we use, you still have to actually build cables, conductors that connect at Gardiner or somewhere else; and in very early stages, like four or five years ago, it was reviewed, and this was -- Gardiner was the most economical and least-impactive place to do the connection.


MR. MARTIN:  So there is this 44 kV line, presently, that comes from Wolfe Island to the Gardiners station; is that correct?


MR. NICHOLSON:  It's not 44 kV.  Gardiner has 44 kV out, coming out of it. I believe it's an --


MR. PINTER:  8.32 kV over to the island.  


MR. MARTIN:  So there is an existing path right now, leading from the island to the Gardiners station; is that correct?


MR. NICHOLSON:  It doesn't go directly to Gardiner.  It's at 8 kV, and it goes through what Hydro One would normally call a distribution station, where it's converted from probably 44 kV down to 8 kV.  I'm not sure where that is located.


And I believe there are three cables --


MR. PINTER:  Yes.


MR. NICHOLSON:  -- at Sandy Bay.  There is also one at the other end of the island, as well.  It comes from the other side of the river that goes across, as well.  But at that voltage, 8 kV, we're looking at 10,000 amps, give or take, which is an enormous amount of current.


MR. PINTER:  I guess the other way to word it is that cable that is there could presently maybe carry one-twentieth of our projected capacity.


MS. WONG:  Is that one-twentieth?  


MR. NICHOLSON:  One turbine, I think, is -- when I did the original studies --


MR. PINTER:  186, then, the present infrastructure there.


MR. MARTIN:  Looking at map 12(b) --


MS. ELLIOTT:  Hang on.  I'm not sure where it is in the prefiled evidence, but it is drawing 115 that shows the north of that road, and I think you said it was in 12(b).  We didn't print all of that out so we don't have tabs the way you do, I'm afraid. 


It was in the discussion at 12(b) at the time.  There is an overview, and then there is a drawing.


MS. WONG:  I think it is actually one of the drawings in the industrial study.


MS. ELLIOTT:  It was sent to Mr. Martin directly.


MS. CAMPBELL:  I'm sorry, we're now -- you have now said, just so everybody in the room can hear, you have said you think it is with the updated AMEC study that came out?


MS. WONG:  I don't believe we have that exact drawing, but we have a similar drawing in the AMEC induction study.  It is drawing 505.


MS. CAMPBELL:  505?


MS. WONG:  Yes.  Which is very similar, but not exactly the same.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.


MR. MARTIN:  It says there is an existing transmission line that comes across the Corrections property, and then it follows on the south side of Bath Road, and then crosses Bath Road, going north along Gardiners Road, and then goes up along a small right-of-way and over to this transmission centre.


I guess I am wondering why they haven't followed what is existing and why the need to go through virgin land that hasn't been cut up with easements and right-of-ways.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Do you need to see this drawing?


MR. MILLER:  I think I understand.  Mr. Martin, are you saying rather than doing a little jog and 50 metres or so east, and then straight north, going left and going west a little bit, and then up Gardiners Road?


MS. ELLIOTT:  What is shown on the drawing is existing transmission line that runs up Gardiners Road instead of coming across east of Gardiners Road at Mr. Martin's property.


MR. MILLER:  There is not a transmission line on Gardiners Road, it is a distribution line.  So that would be a typographical error.  What is on Gardiners Road, the pole lines that are on Gardiners Road is --


MR. NICHOLSON:  There is a legend that indicates it that says "existing transmission line."  It should say "distribution line".


MS. ELLIOTT:  If it is all right, we prefiled this exhibit.  It came from you, I think, Mr. Miller, or your company.


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  That should say "distribution line."


MS. CAMPBELL:  Okay.  But since we have only one of the thing that everybody is referring to, is it possible to reference what you are discussing on map 505 that was filed with AMEC.  That way everybody is looking at the same diagram and we all understand it, what the concerns are that are being raised.


MR. MILLER:  If we all look at drawing 505 that was in the AMEC study.  It is underneath railway.  It says existing transmission line.


MS. CAMPBELL:  If I am looking at diagram 505 --


MR. MILLER:  On the bottom left corner in the legend, there is the railway track --


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.


MR. MILLER:  -- symbol.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes.


MR. MILLER:  Then there is the pink line with the circle on it and it says "existing transmission line".  That is incorrect.  That should say "existing distribution line".


MR. RUPERT:  Can I just make sure I'm clear?  There is an existing transmission line, of course, from the Gardiner TS, which is up above in the middle upper part of the chart.  I take it the size of the dots indicates whether it is a transmission tower or a distribution tower?


MR. MILLER:  It is very confusing.  I mean, you're correct the -- thank you for pointing it out.  Paralleling the Canadian National Railway track coming down and terminating at the Gardiner TS, that is the 230 kV high-voltage line.


Where I think we're running into trouble is in the sort of bottom left corner of the drawing where it says Gardiners Road.  We have used the same coloured line with the circles, and that is creating confusion.


That line along Gardiners Road, that basically comes down Gardiners Road, makes a right-hand turn going east on Bath Road, and then going south on the Correctional Services Canada lands, that is in fact a 44 kV distribution line.  So we need to update the map.  That is not a -- the line on Gardiners Road is not a transmission line.  It is a distribution line, and I believe it is 44 kV.


MS. WONG:  Is that the one we have seen before as the orange line in some the bigger maps we looked at, the one that goes across the Correction Services land?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. ELLIOTT:  You see our confusion, then; we keep asking you why aren't you using the existing line.


MR. MILLER:  That is a very good question.  It was a transmission line, and it was already there.  We would love to use it.  It would be a lot less expensive.


MS. ELLIOTT:  And so what stops you from following -- at least there are already easements there.  Why can't you follow that same pathway?  It is a road.  It is not on the private lands.  There is a run there, no matter what is in it.  I think that is Mr. Martin's main question.


Why can't you go in the same trench, or whatever you want to call it, and follow it?


MR. MILLER:  There are many reasons.  Byron can probably speak to some of them.  If we get into those trenches -- and there is other infrastructure.  There are conflicts.  It is certainly the City of Kingston and Utilities Kingston preference that we avoid the public rights-of-way, because there are competing interests for infrastructure and future expansion; water, sewer, gas, Bell, cable.  So you're ripping up asphalt and inconveniencing the public.  


When we got north of Bath Road, being along the backs of grassed commercial-industrial properties did have, we felt, the least impact on the public and existing infrastructure.  


Where we're proposing to go is essentially greenfield.  There is no infrastructure in the ground.  As soon as you get out to Gardiners Road and if you're in the public roadway right-of-way, it is congested with other utilities.


MS. WONG:  Perhaps I could ask one clarifying point that might help you.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Thank you.


MS. WONG:  That 44 kV line that we have talked about, that is an overhead distribution line, is it not?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  So there isn't any existing underground transmission line or distribution line that you can somehow follow?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct, but there would be gas and water and sewer.


MR. MARTIN:  If you took this line above ground, how would it affect the gas and sewer and water lines in the ground?


MR. PINTER:  Maybe, Byron, you want to talk about induced voltage again and overhead versus underground.


MR. NICHOLSON:  Yes.  There would probably be -- well, I don't even know where to start, really.  There is a lot of impact on whether it is overhead or underground.  You have these probably monopole, if it was ever to be allowed.


A monopole is a single pole as opposed to the four-legged tower-type construction.


It would have fairly significant impact on all of the other communications circuits and other 44 kV lines in the area that would have to probably be mitigated; phone lines, communication lines.  It is probably generally not in the public interest to have more high towers going through -- down along city streets.


It also means that if a big truck hits it, it's going to potentially knock it down and could have reliability issues with the entire electrical system in this area.  If you take the 230 kV line -- if it was to come down, it would have a significant impact on Gardiner, as well as probably a fair way around the city and probably outside of the city.


So a buried cable is probably more reliable as far as the system is concerned, with poles that are located on a roadway right-of-way.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Nicholson, may I ask a clarifying question.  When you commented that there would be potential risks to reliability, if, for example, a pole was to come down, is that because the transmission line for the Wolfe Island project would be sharing the same poles with the local distribution system?


MR. NICHOLSON:  No, it wouldn't be the same poles.  But what they're talking about is putting them on the same right-of-way, which is basically on Gardiners Road, 

MS. CHAPLIN:   Right. 

MR. NICHOLSON:  Which means it is a fairly -- if my memory serves me right, it is not that wide.  There is not that much space to physically put a 230 kV monopole structure.  


It would be like five or ten feet or something off of the roadway.  So you are very close to an active busy road, and big trucks can, worst case, hit it and knock it down.


If --


MS. CHAPLIN:  How does that affect the local system?  I guess that's what I'm...

     MR. NICHOLSON:  The 230 kV, what would happen is, if it came down, it would probably only be momentary.  The protection systems would knock it off-line, but in the interim you would have -- the voltage would collapse on the 230 kV momentarily, before it would recover.  Depending on where it was and how it fell over, it would take a while to reinstall.


Now, as far as Kingston goes, it would be hopefully only a momentary blip in their voltages, and the impact probably is NPCC-impactive.  In other words, because of their connection close to the US, that fault would probably be felt in the US, which means it is NPCC.


 MS. CHAPLIN:  Could you tell us what -- what is that acronym?


MR. NICHOLSON:  Northeast Power Coordinating Council, which Ontario Hydro is part of.  It sets guidelines.  They're part of a certain division within NERC, which is the North American Electric Reliability Council.


And there are certain constraints requirements by NPCC for anything that is impactive on neighbouring jurisdictions, of which this is probably considered one.


MR. MILLER:  I can also say that in our dealings with the City of Kingston and many of the private landowners along this short section of the route, it was certainly their preference that we be underground.  


Correctional Services Canada has future plans to develop that corner of their land, and they did not want an overhead line, because they thought that would have an impact on the development potential for that parcel.


Then the other landowners that we were dealing with, they preferred the transmission line to be at the back of their properties and they wanted it to be underground.  


The City of Kingston also said that the zoning is currently in place and they have no issues with an underground line.  Had we proposed an above-ground line, it would have been very complicated for us and difficult for us to get the transmission line permitted by the City of Kingston.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  I'm sorry for interrupting you, Mr. Martin.  


MS. CAMPBELL:  Excuse me, Madam Chair, just before everybody continues, you indicated in your opening statement that you thought a morning break would take place around 11:00.  It is now 11:10.  Would this be a convenient time?


MS. CHAPLIN:  Is it convenient for you, Mr. Martin, Ms. Elliott, to take a break now until 11:30?


MS. ELLIOTT:  That's fine.


MS. CAMPBELL:  One more thing while it is fresh in my mind, if I could ask that Mr. Miller, perhaps, or Ms. Wong, you could undertake to provide an updated copy of document 505, properly labelled --


MR. MILLER:  Yes, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  -- indicating that that, in fact, is a distribution line, so that the records that are kept with the Board remain accurate.  Can I give that undertaking K2.


MS. WONG:  We will do so.

UNDERTAKING NO. K2:  TO PROVIDE UPDATED COPY OF DOCUMENT 505


MS. WONG:  We will do so.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  We will resume at 11:30.


--- Recess taken at 11:11 a.m. 

 
--- Upon resuming at 11:33 a.m. 


MS. CHAPLIN:  Please be seated. 


Mr. Martin, are you ready to continue?


MR. MARTIN:  Yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Excuse me.  Once again, I interject.  

Procedural Matters


MS. KINGSTON:  I just wanted to clarify a discussion that I had with Ms. Wong concerning the conditions of approval that have been propounded by Utilities Kingston, and Mr. Miller is here on behalf -- another Mr. Miller -- is here on behalf of Utilities Kingston.


It was suggested that at the end of the questioning of this witness panel, Ms. Wong and Mr. Miller could address the conditions of approval that Utilities Kingston and CREC are prepared to agree to, and put before this Panel as being appropriate for inclusion in the conditions of approval.


MS. WONG:  That's right, Ms. Campbell, and I am prepared to do that at the conclusion of this witness panel.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay, thank you.  

Cross-Examination by Mr. Martin (cont'd)


MR. MARTIN:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  


The right-of-way that is along Gardiners Road -- being there's an existing right-of-way there presently -- has it been looked at whether there was the potential just to extend that right-of-way along there, and keep everything together in that one corridor?


MR. MILLER:  Sorry, which right-of-way?


MS. ELLIOTT:  Going back to the typographical error right-of-way.  Could it be widened?  Do you look at whether it could be widened to accommodate, so that you are not feet five feet from the road, for example?


MR. MILLER:  Well, again, I will restate:  The City of Kingston and Utilities Kingston's preference is that we not encumber the public road right-of-way, so we didn't actively pursue that option.


There is also -- and Mr. Jim Miller reminded me of this -- there is a fairly significant constraint where the railway overpass is, over Gardiners Road.  You are severely constricted in terms of trying to get over or under the railway, within the Gardiners Road right-of-way.  


MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  But I guess what I am proposing is that all you do is extend -- so that we don't interfere with the City of Kingston or Utilities Kingston -- just extend the right-of-way right beside the existing right-of-ways that are there. 


This way, everything is kept in the same area, and we're not dicing up the land in behind.  That is virgin land, where we're going to have to have set-backs on both sides of a brand new right-of-way going through these lands.  As opposed to, you know, they will front on a roadway where, again, that's not going to affect any set-backs; and there is set-backs already in place, when you build buildings, with regard to the front of properties where you have to be set back presently anyway.


So that way it would mitigate any of the, I guess, hindrances that come from yet further interior right-of-ways for set-backs.


MR. MILLER:  Well, again, with our discussion with landowners and the city, it was preferred that we be at the back of those lots.  Other landowners wanted to keep the front portions of their lots open.


MR. MARTIN:  So are you telling me, Mr. Miller, then, that you did enter into the discussions with the property owners along there, and they told you that they didn't want it in the front?  They wanted it in the back?


MR. MILLER:  I personally didn't.


MR. MARTIN:  I don't think that has been done, because I have had discussions with those landowners.


MR. MILLER:  Well, I know when CREC approached the landowners, based on what we have heard from the city and Utilities Kingston, it just seemed to be the most logical and most straightforward and most direct route to get where we needed to interconnect, following the route that is presented.


MR. MARTIN:  I do respect, and I have certainly read it here, that the costs of the line that you propose are most cost-effective to your organization.  I respect that.  


The problem is, is that these right-of-ways, where you are putting them, are not cost-effective for the other landowners in that area.


MS. WONG:  I am not sure the witness can add much more at this point, Madam Chair.  You have his evidence.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Yes.


MR. MARTIN:  I would like to move on, if I could, Madam Chair.


This connection at the Gardiners road station; have they looked to the States side?  I think it was brought up earlier, by one of the Panel here, that it runs into the United States as well as Canada and Ontario, as far as the Hydro grid goes.


Can we connect in Cape Vincent or somewhere on the other side of the lake, as opposed to here in Kingston?


MR. MILLER:  Our contract is with the Ontario Power Authority to deliver power to the Ontario Power Authority, to connect to the Hydro One grid, the transmission grid.  There was no RFP or no contract available, or avenue to sell power to the States.


MR. MARTIN:  But that does go on; the Ontario government and the United States, they sell power back and forth.  That was my understanding.  Is that correct?


MS. WONG:  Do you know?


MR. MILLER:  I don't, no.


MR. MARTIN:  So can no one answer that question?  I guess no one knows.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Perhaps, Mr. Miller, you have explained that the RFP was with Ontario Power Authority.  Did that RFP require -- have any requirements as to where the generation needed to be connected into the system?  Did it have to be power generated and transmitted within Ontario?  Or could those projects have taken place outside of Ontario?  Do you have any knowledge about that?


MR. MILLER:  It is my understanding that the RFP was for the benefit of Ontarians.  The Ontario government wanted to and solicited green renewable energy power for the benefit of Ontarians.  So the power had to be -- it was contracted by the OPA.  It had to be sold to the province, and then connect to the Hydro One grid.


Where that power goes from there, I am not aware of how power flows through interconnects with either other provinces or the States.


MS. CHAPLIN:  So your understanding is the power was to be generated in Ontario and sold to Ontario, to the Ontario Power Authority?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.


MS. CHAPLIN:  For use in Ontario?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  That is correct.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Is that helpful, Mr. Martin?


MR. MARTIN:  Yes.  I guess my question really is, what I'm wondering is: I think we all know that Ontario sells hydro to the United States.  The United States at times sells hydro back to Canada.  So does it really matter where this hydro that is being generated in Ontario, whether it gets distributed to the States, or whether it gets distributed to Ontario?


And if that is the case, is there a transfer station that is in the Cape Vincent area that can handle this, as opposed to coming to the City of Kingston?


MR. RUPERT:  Mr. Miller, it is probably not appropriate, but to the extent, my experience has been virtually all of the power that flows back and forth between the two countries is imported or exported by private-sector firms, not the Ontario government.  Only on an emergency basis does the IESO import power.  Other transactions are commercial transactions involving marketers, and not the Ontario government.


MS. WONG:  Just to follow up on that, Mr. Miller -- or Mr. Martin, sorry.  The power is going to be sold to the Ontario government, so it has to be delivered to the Ontario grid.  That is what Mr. Miller is trying to explain to you, is that the only way to get it to Ontario is to join the Hydro One grid.  It is being sold to the province of Ontario.


MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  This 230 kV line that goes across this defunct right -- or defunct road that we have presently, and again, this will be an entrance in and out of our building.  Right now, it is shut down presently until we get done constructing, and we're very close to having it reopened.


We need to put street lighting and different lines in, in order to appropriately light this particular road, part roadway.  


I have heard previously that there is an existing submerged line under Lake Ontario that you can't cross with your line.


How does this work with the lines that we have to run up our roadway?  Can we cross your lines or can you cross our lines?


MR. PINTER:  I will answer that.  Yes, you could.  The voltage that street lighting operates at can be buried at a depth less than our transmission line.


So future infrastructure that had to go into that place could cross our line, because our line is buried at a deeper depth.


MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  As I think you are well aware, there are some cell towers in this area, and we have been in discussion with other companies with regard to cell towers on our property.  Will this line have any adverse effect on cell towers and our ability to have people put these structures up on our property and, unfortunately, in this area?


MR. PINTER:  Not to my knowledge, no.  It should not, but we have not conducted a formal study on communications.  But in my experience, underground cables do not interfere with cellular communications.


MS. WONG:  If I could just point out, Madam Chair, that all of that information would be subject to any compensation review that might take place either before the OMB or private negotiations.  So it is my position that any evidence relating to commercial impacts on Mr. Martin would not be appropriately dealt with in this hearing.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Ms. Elliott or Mr. Martin, do you have any --


MS. ELLIOTT:  I think Mr. Martin has some.


MR. MARTIN:  I would like to finish up here, if I could.


The building itself has to be grounded for lightning.  Is there any -- I guess if lightning strikes the building and we're grounded too close to this line, is that of concern, or do we have to be concerned of how we ground our building?


I guess how does it work with your line?  Lightning won't strike it?  It won't be a factor?


MR. PINTER:  No.  That is one of the advantages of running power cables underground is they're basically immune to lightning strikes.


So there will be no effect of your grounding your system with our underground cables, because our underground cables are only going to be grounded at the ends and grounded at the joint between the submarine cable and the underground cable.


So for the rest of the portion, the ground is not exposed.  The grounding of our cables is not exposed to earth.  So there will be no effect on your ground system from our cables.


MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  If I could, I just want to go back.  I didn't write down the response there.


With regard to the lands fronting on Gardiners Road, was it looked at?  I'm sorry, was it looked at?  Did you try to negotiate or anything there with regard to a right-of-way beside the existing right-of-way?


MR. MILLER:  No, not that I'm aware of.


MR. MARTIN:  Okay.  That's all I have.  Ms. Elliott.


MS. ELLIOTT:  A different topic, you will be glad to know.


On the response to interrogatories, Mr. Martin, which I think is volume 3.  These are really process questions about how this will work.


 Let everybody get it first.  It is volume 3.  To me it is page 6 of 11.  Hopefully it is the same in your materials.  It is question 6 that Mr. Martin posed.


And the answer received is succinctly put when Mr. Martin was saying, Well, if we're going to build in there, when we build in there, how do we approach it?  It was:  Call before you dig.  We all know what that means.  I am fine that.


The next two paragraphs talk about:

"Detailed construction drawings will be prepared for installation and record drawings will be prepared following construction."


So my process question is:  In what format will those be supplied to Mr. Martin?  Does he have to ask for them? For just the part that affects his land, obviously, not everything.


What's the process for obtaining them so that he can use them as part of the planning for his own development?


MR. MILLER:  Jim, do you me to answer that?


MR. PINTER:  Sure, go ahead.


MR. MILLER:  Well, typically when infrastructure is constructed, there are professionally engineered as-built construction drawings.  They can be provided electronically in AutoCAD format or in PDF, as well as hard copy, that delineate the plan and profile of the infrastructure.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Are they just supplied when they're prepared, or do we have to ask for them?


MR. MILLER:  It was our intention to provide all of the property owners with those surveys and record drawings, as well as Utilities Kingston and the city.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Thank you.  Then the final paragraph in that answer talks about survey drawings.  I know what surveys are.  I'm not sure what a survey drawing is.  Is that the same thing?


MR. MILLER:  Same thing.  We will do a legal survey.


MS. ELLIOTT:  All right.  For -- the final right-of-way for the transmission line will be surveyed.  Then it says:

"These will be reflected on the property owner's legal drawings and registered."  


So the easement agreement I take it is registered and a survey or an R plan, or reference plan, will be attached to the easement.  Is that the document?  Is that the process?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  I believe that is typically what happens.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Okay.  And does Mr. Martin see the draft reference plan before it is registered, or do you know?


This is stuff I do understand.  I'm a real-estate lawyer.  Reference plans often change, just like typographical errors in documents.  Do you circulate the draft plan to the abutting -- or to the landowner?


MS. WONG:  You might actually know more than us, because you are a real-estate lawyer.  I think the understanding would be that if it is a negotiated easement, you would be involved in that process.


If it is an expropriated easement, the specific description of the property would have to be attached to whatever expropriation takes place.  So in either case, Mr. Martin would be involved and certainly notified.  Is that helpful?


MS. ELLIOTT:  That is helpful.  Given that it is crossing this 20-metre strip of his land, when you are looking at the exact location of where to put it, would you normally meet with Mr. Martin on site and -- there's some range or degree of tolerance as to where you actually put the easement, presumably?


MR. MILLER:  Correct.  We will be on either side of Mr. Martin's 20-metre wide strip, so it will be a 10-metre wide continuous strip, and it is our intent to put the transmission line in the middle of the 10 metres.  


MS. ELLIOTT:  Okay.  And will you at some point be on the ground showing him where it is going to be before you put it in, so you can get any input that he might -- not compelling you to follow it, just so you can have a discussion.  Is that the normal process?


MR. PINTER:  I think that is a reasonable statement, yes.  We will have people on the ground marking the route, and Mr. Martin is more than welcome to participate or show up and review where the line is.  I think the best -- or the intent is to keep it in a straight line as much as possible.  That allows easier locates in the future.


If you start to deviate from that path, you can get in trouble in the future when people start digging in the area.  Also, we're trying to align with the Gardiner substation for the interconnection.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Okay.  Just on that point, so you will have people on the ground and Mr. Martin is welcome to show up.  Would you normally tell him, Hey, we're going to be here that day?  He works all over town.  He doesn't sort of -- he's not at that site all the time.


MR. PENSTONE:  Yes, we could provide him notice.  I think we -- there must be a system in place where we provide notice to the landowners that we're going to come and do construction and advise them and --


MR. MILLER:  We're going to have CREC representatives.  Our construction, engineering and design firm is called Canadian Projects Limited.  They will have representatives on site, and we will have -- we have a construction-management plan, where we have a list of names and contacts, and we're certainly going to be engaged with them, working with all of the affected landowners.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Thank you.


MR. MILLER:  During construction. 


MR. MARTIN:  If I can go back to one more question, Madam Chair.  


Will these easements, will they grow in the future?  As your needs require more, you know, be it more lines or more power --


MR. MILLER:  No.  I think maybe there's some open-endedness in the agreements, but all CREC requires is an easement, a ten metre-wide easement for the 230 kV line.  There is no requirement for expansion of the line, or an additional line.


MS. WONG:  It might help you, Mr. Martin:  If any expansion is intended for some reason, and none is intended at this point, my understanding is there would have to be another leave-to-construct application before the Board.  We can't -- CREC can't just expand the line.  We would have to do this all over again.


MR. PINTER:  Also to add, the island is at full capacity with wind integration.  Just -- there would be physically no room to add any more generation, so there is no reason in the future to add any future power lines.


MR. MARTIN:  In that particular location on the island?


MR. PINTER:  Right.


MS. ELLIOTT:  I think that is the questions, if I could just check quickly.


I guess I did have a general question about monitoring, and you have seen that we're interested in the monitoring aspect of this.


Mr. Miller, you have been to the site where Mr. Martin's property is?


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Right?  And you have seen he has got the residential apartment building under construction there.  Have you?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Okay.  Monitoring is of concern to Mr. Martin because of perceived health risks for the public, and the materials, as filed -- I won't refer to any specific one, but they're very clear that it is -- to me it is clear that it is inconclusive.  To you it is clear that it has not been proved.


In any event, monitoring of the line, I understand from what Mr. Pinter said, takes place at either end.  I heard him speak about leakage, and this ground something that is outside of the cable, so that you can tell if there is a break in the cable.


This is also encased in concrete.  We have just a general concern about how to keep reassuring people that the monitoring is of the line and the installation of the line, the cable and the installation of it.


So, concrete can deteriorate or someone digging can break through it and, I suppose, not tell you.  If the concrete gets broken, does that get caught in your monitoring somehow?


MR. PINTER:  Well, just to clarify, the cables are not encased in concrete.  The concrete is just a mechanical barrier, to prevent accidental contact by someone digging in that area.


The cables are actually embedded in sand.  The sand is there also to provide a soft environment for the cables, because there may be some settling or movement, very slight, but the sand's in place to keep the cables from becoming damaged when they're sitting in the trench.


So we dig the trench.  We put a sand bedding down and we put the cables on the sand bedding, and then we cover them again with more sand, just to provide a soft enclosure so the cables don't become damaged over their lifetime.


MS. ELLIOTT:  So, if there is any break in the cable that would then expose the line in the cable, you would catch that; is that what I understand?


MR. PINTER:  Could you repeat the question, please.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Sorry.  If the cable surrounding your line gets broken somehow, you have a monitoring system that captures that break in the cable?  Is that right?  Because then the --


MR. PINTER:  Basically, the composition of the cable is that there is insulation around the bare conductor.  If that installation breaks down over time, then the protection system will detect that.


Hydro One and the IESO have very strict regulations around the protection systems that are required for this system.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Okay.  Thank you.


MR. MARTIN:  This line that goes through -- that would potentially go through this easement -- is it bored, then?  Or do you cut through the existing roadway and whatnot that is there?


MR. PINTER:  It would be direct-trenched.


MR. MARTIN:  So you won't bore it?


MR. PINTER:  No, no.  The construction methodology is to trench -- open trench, open excavation -- a ditch.  Then, as I explained, put sand down, put the cables in a sand bedding, put a concrete barrier over top.  Then native backfill will be compacted to stacked to the regulations of compaction to meet requirements, so there is no settlement after the project is completed and in service.


MR. MILLER:  But Mr. Martin, in your case, if there is asphalt, we restore the trenches --


MR. MARTIN:  I respect that.  What happens is we're in the midst of doing that right now, putting that through for the city as part of our site-plan agreement with them, in order to have occupancy for that first building.


And of course, if you're doing something -- you've got it down brand new and you can see it all around the city -- you put down a brand new road, and then they dig it up and they patch it.  What happens is that patch sinks a little bit, so you have got a little dip in the road.  Before you know it, you have got potholes, and you know, it's on and on and on.  


I guess, you know, I'm looking at it and saying to myself:  It would be nice, after I have done all of that work, to have it at least -- you know, if they're going to go through, bore it through as opposed to having the scenario where you're open-trenching it.  Then I am left with, you know, some deficiencies in our road and sidewalks.


MR. MILLER:  Well, at this point it is not our intent to bore that section of driveway.  We have made the commitment with the City of Kingston to bore under the public road rights-of-way, because of the impact on the city and large traffic volumes.


MS. ELLIOTT:  If this is approved, do you have any idea when you would be wanting to locate through Mr. Martin's lands?  Maybe he can plan around you.


MR. PINTER:  I think it – Well, doesn't it revolve around the approval process and when we get the environmental assessment approved?


MR. MILLER:  That's true.  We have to get the environmental assessment approved.  We're anticipating that being done, and filing our notice of completion shortly, certainly by the end of the month or early October.


And then we still have to make application to the City of Kingston for site-plan approval and cut permit municipal consent, but as soon as we get those approvals, then we will begin construction.


We will work with the landowners, certainly, to coordinate construction.  


It is anticipated that we could start the transmission line as early as sometime in the first quarter of 2008, like after Christmas.  But that depends on the weather and construction crews.  Jim, the cable has been ordered?


MR. PINTER:  We have the cable.  It is in Kingston.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Thank you.  I think those are my questions.  Mr. Martin?


MR. MARTIN:  Yes, thank you.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Thank you.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you. Mr. Ricchetti, did you have any questions?


MR. RICCHETTI:  No, thank you Madam Chair.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Did anyone else have any questions?  Ms. Nowina.


MS. NOWINA:  I have a couple of questions.

Questions from the Board


MS. NOWINA:  You just mentioned it; can you tell me again where the EA stands, what your expectation is around that.


MR. MILLER:  If I can give you some of the details.  One of the last agencies we needed to hear from was Environment Canada, Canadian Wildlife Services.  I got that e-mail at 2:42 p.m. on Friday, so we're reviewing Environment Canada, Canadian Wildlife Service comments right now, and taking them into consideration, incorporating their comments into the EA.  But we do hope to be filing notice of completion, I think realistically, sometime in early October, so early next month. That will start the 30-day formal stakeholder review, public-comment period, on the EA.


MS. NOWINA:  All right, thank you.  And the other question was regarding Mr. Martin's question around boring or open trenching.


So it is my understanding you could bore under Mr. Martin's property?  Do you have the ability to do that?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.  Technically it is possible.  It's feasible to bore.


MS. NOWINA:  The reason you would do trenching instead was because...?


MR. MILLER:  It's just the -- I guess it would be the standard preferred way to install the cable.  It is quite involved to excavate.  When you trench or bore, you still have to put down what are called bell holes or dig on either side of where you want a trench.  I think typically boring or directional drilling is reserved for large public roads, rights-of-way, where there is lots of traffic, and railway lines.  We're going to bore underneath the CNR rail line.


MR. PINTER:  It would have a larger impact on the landowners on either side, because we would need a larger easement to dig a bigger hole to get the boring equipment on each side.


So the overall impact on the project would be greater to try and bore through than to trench.


MS. NOWINA:  Is it fair to say it is more expensive?


MR. MILLER:  It is more expensive, yes.


MS. NOWINA:  Thank you.  Those are my questions.


MS. CHAPLIN:  The larger easements would be for Mr. Martin, as well, or for the two properties on either side?


MR. PINTER:  The adjacent lands.


MS. CHAPLIN:  The adjacent lands, thank you.  Mr. Rupert.


MR. RUPERT:  I just wanted to confirm something that goes back, I guess, to your original application, which was in February/March.  I've forgotten the exact date now.


When you filed that and subsequently you put the notice in the paper, we received - and you would have had copies, as well - a number of letters from people to do with the park and their concerns about that, concerns about scuba diving and wind surfing and other issues.


When the amended application came in, you again posted a notice of that and there has been nothing on that.


I just wanted to confirm that this change in route has alleviated the issues that were voiced when you first filed your application.


MR. MILLER:  I believe it has.  We've been discussing the route and informing affected parties, such as -- like the sail-boarders, the Kingston Wind Surfing Association and the greater Sunnyacres Community about where we wanted to go and the installation method, i.e., we're going to be underground.


So that alleviated the community's concerns, and many of the people in that community -- if you remember, we had kind of an open house or a community meeting in January, at the end of January.  I think it was January 30th.  Many of the people from that community came to our public open house in March and, you know, saw what we were doing and were basically supportive of what we have accomplished.


MR. RUPERT:  You have heard nothing more since then in any way since --


MR. MILLER:  That's correct.  They seem to be okay with what we're doing.


MR. RUPERT:  The other thing is just further to what Ms. Campbell said earlier and you're probably going to do this anyway, but going back to this confusion with distribution-transmission lines on drawing 505.  Actually, I think you may want redo the whole 5 series, because there is transmission lines listed everywhere there.


MR. MILLER:  Yes, we were talking about that.  It is not just the one drawing.  It is a series of drawings.


MR. RUPERT:  Thank you.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  I have a question following on from an interrogatory answer that you referred to in your opening testimony.  These are the answers to OEB Staff interrogatories dated July 27th.  I believe it was given identifier volume 6.


MR. MILLER:  Okay.


MS. CHAPLIN:  It is the second set of interrogatories.  It is the answer to A15, which begins on page 10, but my question is on page 11.


MR. MILLER:  Okay.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay?  And at the top, it says:  

"One of the aims of CREC's discussions with the MBQ is to obtain the MBQ's written acknowledgement that the Crown's obligations to consult have been satisfied."


Have you received such written acknowledgement?


MR. MILLER:  We have not received that as yet, but CREC has met with the Ministry of Energy.  That was late August, early September.  I can't remember the exact date.


It was decided that the Ministry of Energy would take the -- I guess the lead, be the lead Crown agency in order to contact the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte to perform the Crown's duty to consult.  So that's actually happened.  


I do know the Ministry of Energy has contacted the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte with regard to this project.


MS. CHAPLIN:  So your understanding is that the Ministry has taken on that obligation?


MR. MILLER:  That role, yes.


MS. NOWINA:  So from your perspective, you have met whatever requirements might be of you?


MR. MILLER:  Yes.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Do you expect to be involved in that at all, or will be informed of the results?


MR. MILLER:  We do expect to be involved and informed of the results.  Conversely, when we are contacting and working with the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte, we have committed to letting the Crown know the outcomes of our meetings with the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte, so that those meetings and those conversations happen -- like, they don't happen in a vacuum.


MS. CHAPLIN:  So your expectation is this will be sort of an ongoing process over the course of the project?


MR. MILLER:  Well --


MS. CHAPLIN:  Or is your expectation that it concludes at some point?


MR. MILLER:  Our expectation is that it does conclude, and hopefully sooner rather than later.  We would like to have the First Nations issue resolved and the Crown's duty to consult closed, as well as the Mohawks of Bay of Quinte's endorsement of our EA.


MS. CHAPLIN:  So what do you -- this may be a question for Ms. Wong.  I don't know.  How do you sort of envisage it unfolding, that you would -- you will not proceed until you have that confirmation that the duty to consult has been discharged?


MR. MILLER:  It will be, I think, largely predicated on the approval of the EA or the ERR.  The director of the Environmental Assessment Approvals Branch will, I believe, go down his check list and determine whether or not he feels that First Nations have adequately been consulted or informed of the project.  


If he says yes, then our EA will be approved.  If he says no, then further work will be required to consult with First Nations.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay, thank you for that.  Those are all of my questions.  Ms. Wong, do you have any --


MS. WONG:  I have no further questions.  At this point, all I propose to do is speak briefly about the agreement with Utilities Kingston about proposed conditions of approval.


Those are set out in a letter dated September 21, 2007 which was sent by my firm to the Board on Friday.  The first sentence starts, "On September 19th, 2007".


My understanding is Mr. Miller of Utilities Kingston, who is here, by the way, had requested certain conditions to be included in the Board's order, and CREC and Utilities Kingston have discussed those conditions.  And the ones set out in this letter are conditions that both parties are agreeable to, assuming the Board is agreeable to them as well.


I could go through them, but I think you can read them as easily as I can.


MS. NOWINA:  I have a question, Ms. Wong.  With regards to condition number 1, and the final sentence of that is:

"In the event of a dispute, CREC may apply to the Board for an order varying this condition."


Can you explain to me, first, how the reasonable requirements of the City of Kingston will be set, what a dispute might look like, and what resolution you are expecting from the Board?


MS. WONG:  I think what a dispute might look like is a dispute over what is reasonable.  So if the City of Kingston asks CREC to do something that they do not consider to be reasonable, my understanding is the Board's supervening authority -- that the Board has authority over the municipal bylaws and municipal laws.  So we would come back and ask the Board essentially to determine if what the city is asking for is reasonable.


MS. NOWINA:  Then from your answer, you are assuming that the city would be asking for these conditions or requirements under the approvals that they would normally give?


MS. WONG:  I believe so, although the city wasn't very clear on what they might require.  So what we were trying to do is build in a little bit of safety for both sides.


My understanding is the city might ask for things that might be outside of their normal approval process, and, in that event, we might have to come back to the Board to be the final arbiter of what is reasonable. 


MS. NOWINA:  All right.  Thank you.


MS. WONG:  Hopefully, we will never have to do that.


MS. NOWINA:  So I understand it, so if the city has a requirement around some of the normal approvals that they give, you would expect that if you came back to the Board and we said, "No, that wasn't reasonable, you're not required to do it," then, somehow, that would order the city to issue the appropriate approvals?


MS. WONG:  I don't -- Sorry, did you have something to say?


MS. CAMPBELL:  My problem with this, before you jump in -- perhaps I might be jumping over an answer that you might give that might be of assistance to us -- but I don't understand how the Board has jurisdiction to tell the City of Kingston whether or not they have reasonable requirements, when it comes to their roads and infrastructure. 


The jurisdiction of this Board has to do with the transmission -– Sorry, I am having a mental cramp right now as to what we're dealing with, I apologize.  The transmission facilities and route that is before the Board properly, the leave-to-construct jurisdiction is under Section 92.


I do not believe, and I would be interested to hear your thoughts on this as to how the Board acquires jurisdiction over the design and activities that take place on the roads of Kingston, and how Kingston wishes to set up that road and those infrastructure.  I don't see how we acquire that jurisdiction.  And I don't believe, with all due respect, that saying that you will put it in a condition actually gives the Board jurisdiction.


MS. WONG:  Well, I agree with you, it wouldn't necessarily give the Board jurisdiction.  A lot would depend on what the dispute is over.  You have got to appreciate, at this point, we're trying to guess what may happen in the future.


My understanding is the city wouldn't necessarily have any authority over the design aspects of the project.  We are agreeing to something that the city might not have any rights over, so we are saying, We will give you some input into the design, and we agree to meet your reasonable requirements.


If, for some reason, their reasonable requirements are not reasonable in CREC's view, and there is no particular standard that is being violated, my submission would be -- and we would maybe have to deal with this at the time if we ever came before the Board -- that under Section 92 the Board has a supervening authority to give leave to construct. 


We would rely, for instance, on the Union Gas and Dawn case, which says that the Board has authority over municipal bylaws, and you can give a proponent jurisdiction or authority to construct in the face of a municipal bylaw to the contrary.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, but if I remember that case correctly, that case had to do with the municipality trying to override, essentially, the Union franchise.


MS. WONG:  That's correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Which was valiantly defended by, I believe, your firm.


MS. WONG:  Correct; several years ago, though.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, several years ago.  But I get back to the issue that I have, which is simply:  This is very broadly written and seems to suggest that the Board's jurisdiction could somehow be broadened to include the City of Kingston's existing roads and infrastructure.


Is what you're saying, and is your position that, insomuch as the construction that is the subject of this application is in conflict with the rules of the municipality with regard to infrastructure, that to the extent of the conflict, that the Board has jurisdiction?  


MS. WONG:  Correct.  So this clause would only allow CREC to avoid this particular condition, if you will.  So if there is some other law out there that would prevent them from doing whatever it is they want to do, they would still be bound by that law.


They would just simply come back and ask the Board to relieve them from this particular condition, and the Board of course would have jurisdiction at that time to determine whether or not what we are asking for is reasonable and in the public interest.  Keeping in mind that the reason behind the Board having supervening authority is that provincial interest is supposed to take precedence over the municipal interest.


MS. NOWINA:  That is helpful, then.  So my questions go to the substance of the condition.


What requirements might the City of Kingston have, that we would need to put a condition into our Order, that are not already covered by municipal bylaws, and your requirement to meet any approvals that they have to issue?


MS. WONG:  I don't know at this point.  The city was the one that initially proposed a much broader condition. They asked to have authority to approve all of the design and construction activities, and we were of the view that that was too broad, because it gave the city essentially a veto over what we did.


So we're prepared to agree to do what is reasonable, and as I said, if it is not reasonable and we can convince you it is not reasonable, then our position is the Board has authority to overrule the city.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Miller, are you in a position to explain to the Board the sort of things that you envisaged when you originally proposed this condition, What sort of requirements we might be faced with?


If you could come forward, maybe Mr. Ricchetti could let you use his mic in front of him.


MR. J. MILLER:  Thank you.


MS. CHAPLIN:  It will come on automatically.


MR. J. MILLER:  At the time, after we -- the city had dealt with the issue of, sort of, the principle of the installation of the line, and any impacts on our infrastructure, we really are now trying to deal with the details of the construction, in terms of how the transmission line will either intersect or run parallel with existing city infrastructure.


I think in general, without obviously having seen any detailed construction drawings in terms of, for example, the transmission line going over, under, in between existing pipes that we might have on Bath Road or Front Road, for example, we were interested in making sure that we were able to receive enough information to do that evaluation.


Now, depending upon what the results of that might be, there may or may not be conditions that we would be looking for, in terms of where exactly that transmission line goes and how it actually intersects across the right-of-way.


I think we're really looking for that detailed information now.  I understand there may be some issues around, sort of, the authority, but at this point we felt that it would be useful to have that condition covered off at this point in time with the Board.


MS. CHAPLIN:  As part of the municipality's permitting authorities, why would those sort of requirements and that sort of discussion and those sort of issues, why would they not normally come up and be resolved within the city's own permitting activities for this infrastructure?


MR. J. MILLER:  They may very well be, but I guess the question becomes:  If the city is taking a position in terms of issuing a permit that says X, and the applicant disagrees, what happens?  Does the Board have authority to overrule the municipality?  Or is it the municipality's decision and that decision is final?  And I'll be honest with you, I don't know.


MS. CHAPLIN:  You don't know the answer?  Ms. Campbell.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Mr. McKay, who has been doing this for a very, very long time -- despite his youthful 

appearance -- has pointed out that under Section 101 of our Act, that when issues have come up previously -- Section 101(1) reads:  

"Any person who has leave to construct work under this part may apply to the Board for authority to construct it upon, under, or over a highway, utility line, or ditch."


And then it talks about:

"Crossings would leave... the following persons may apply to the Board for authority to construct a work upon, under, or over a highway, utility line or ditch."


That is the new section that has come into force.


So there is a section, and Mr. McKay tells me that it is typically if a resolution can't be worked out with the appropriate municipality.  But it appears we're not at that stage yet.


So I guess we come back to the whole issue of jurisdiction, and the question that was asked was whether or not this would not be covered off during the permit application and approval stage.  


MR. J. MILLER:  Well, certainly the location of the transmission line within the right-of-way would be part of that approval process.  Again, I apologize.  It just may be a situation of: if there is a dispute, then what happens?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Well currently, if there is a dispute between an applicant and the City of Kingston, I would assume if you don't resolve the dispute, you don't issue a permit; right?


MR. J. MILLER:  We don't issue a permit, and in theory, they wouldn't have permission to cut across the road.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Can I take it that is more than in theory?  In practice, you can't cut across a road in the City of Kingston unless you have a permit; right?


MR. J.  MILLER:  Generally speaking, yes, unless you do it illegally. 


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right. I'm sure you're not suggesting to anyone that this fine gentleman would consider doing anything that's not legal, and Ms. Wong would probably string them up the nearest tree if they tried to do that. 


Assuming that wished to proceed in a completely forthright and legal and appropriate manner, am I correct in saying that the City of Kingston holds all of the cards on this one; right?  You can withhold the permit if you're not happy with what they suggest?


MR. MILLER:  Correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  Thank you.


MS. WONG:  Could I just clarify our position on that?  CREC fully intends to apply for all of the permits and hopefully we will get all of the permits, but our position is that if there is a dispute that cannot be resolved, that the Board has the authority to override the permitting authorities, and that is under the basis of the Township of Dawn case from the Divisional Court.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you for the clarification.


MR. RUPERT:  I have a question, Mr. Miller.  Two days before I guess Ms. Wong sent the letter in with the four agreed conditions, you sent a letter which had, I guess it was six conditions at that point that you were still having a discussion about.  While I haven't compared them word for word, the one that clearly doesn't make it into the last list was the condition you had as number 3 before, which was that:

"CREC has advised that in general municipal infrastructure will take precedence and, as such, the installation of the 230 kV line will be required to be located under the existing city infrastructure."

The fact that one doesn't appear, but this clause does appear, I take it that that may be one of the main areas in which there could be disputes under this clause number 1 or condition number 1 we're talking about now?


MR. J. MILLER:  There could be.  Certainly during the discussions with the applicant, I think it was fair enough that at this point in time we really don't know exactly where the transmission line will go, and there may be various mitigating reasons as to where it gets placed.


But the original condition was really to identify that from the city's position, you know, our ability to access our infrastructure unrestricted -- because sometimes we do end up in situations where other utilities within our distribution areas will locate over top of infrastructure and it becomes difficult to construct or do repairs.  


So we basically at that point in the original letter indicated a preference; but, admittedly, without seeing any of the detailed engineering work, there may be other reasons why it should go over top.


So that could be an issue, but I don't know.


MR. RUPERT:  Okay, thanks.


MS. WONG:  The intent was for condition number 1 to take that -- take the position of previous condition 

number 3.


MR. RUPERT:  Right.  I understand, yes.  Thanks.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  I think that covers that aspect.


MS. WONG:  Thank you, Mr. Miller.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Miller.


At this point, the panel can be excused, with the Board's thanks. 


MS. WONG:  We're finished.


--- Witness panel withdraws.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Perhaps -- Mr. Martin, you are going to be sworn or affirmed.  I'm just trying to decide whether or not you should sit over there or if you want to -- you could stay where you are, I think.  I think that would be fine.  


Perhaps if you could just -- if you could come around briefly and Mr. Rupert will either swear or affirm you.

P. MARTIN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LIMITED - PANEL 1


Paul Martin; Sworn

Evidence-In-Chief by Mr. Martin


MR. MARTIN:  Ontario Energy Board Members and other interested parties, my name is Paul Martin.  


I am not against the energy from wind plant for our community.  However, I strongly believe that proper planning is essential for the health and safety of our community.


How and where to place this 230 volt transmission line must be studied in detail with municipal planners, Utilities Kingston, Ontario Hydro, provincial government regulators, federal government regulators, and health and safety regulators and other concerned citizens.


The long-term effect on the lands, housing and surrounding of such a high-voltage line must be considered.


The proposed line will cut through our property in an area the city has designated as the central loop.  We are not industrial lands or institutional lands.  This area will be densely populated with a mixture of highly -- of high-density multi-family dwelling units, and heavily developed commercial stores and service sector providers.


This is a marked contrast, as I mentioned, from the industrial lands of Invista or the institutional lands of the Collins Bay Penitentiary.


Considering the lands north of Bath Road are currently and will continue to be very populated, we must determine the responsibility for the best location of this 230 volt transmission line.


The safety of the area residents and the others utilizing the services in this area must be a priority.  I know there have been reports that have been given to us, and it's not totally conclusive of the safety, but there is also something out there called public perception, which the people that will be occupying our particular multi-family dwelling units, I know, will have concerns with regard to.


R. Paul Martin Construction Company Limited is a small local builder that studies and focusses on strategic land development.  When we purchase property, we investigate in great detail all aspects of the site and surrounding properties before purchasing.


This is to ensure a comprehensive understanding of all easements, right-of-ways, utilities, and other locations of other services.  It is through this strategic process that we purchase and acquire land.


Our company focusses in specific areas, taking advantage of microeconomic efficiencies.


Our developments evolve over time as new opportunities present themselves.  The more easements and right-of-ways that cross a site, the more complex and encumbered the site becomes.  This translates into very costly and time-consuming delays in development.


Our organization has experience with many different scenarios with a minor easement or right-of-way or land agreement that has been very detrimental to our evolving future developments.  These seemingly at the time minor agreements have ended up with -- have ended up with extreme undue hardship in trying to place buildings and other services.  And in order to attempt to rectify these obstacles, we have been faced with skyrocketing costs and non-efficient land usage.


When the power line meets Bath Road, I would suggest the following route:  West on Bath Road to Gardiners Road; north to Gardiners Road to the far side of the CN underpass, and then east to the Gardiners transfer station.  
This route would not contaminate virgin lands for future development.  Land use would be optimized and health and safety concerns mitigated.  


Although this route may cost more money now, in the long run it will be less costly and far safer.  After all, when one considers the question, Are these transmissions harmful to residents, some may answer yes and others no.  There are just too many unknowns.


I am not against the Wolfe Island wind plant.  As a small landowner, I ask you to respect my request to consider the future of the people living in this central loop area.


Although a small guy in comparison to the Canadian Renewable Energy Corporation, I have done my best to read and interpret the volumes of e-mails, reports, maps, and other things sent to me.  I have spent literally hundreds of hours trying to understand the information given to me in order to give it proper due diligence.


Thank you.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you, Mr. Martin.  Do you have some questions?


MS. WONG:  I do have maybe one or two questions, Madam Chair.

Cross-Examination by Mr. Wong


MS. WONG:  Mr. Martin, my understanding is on your site at the moment -- the site is the site just immediately east of the easement; right?


So if we looked at the map -- perhaps we can turn it up -- at tab 12(b).  CREC is asking for an easement over the laneway, and we see the laneway about a third of the way up the page.  Immediately to the right of the easement, there is a larger piece of land marked as belonging to R. Paul Martin Construction Co. Limited.


On that piece of land, you already have an apartment building built; is that correct?


MR. MARTIN:  Yes, it is under construction right now.


MS. WONG:  How large a building is that?


MR. MARTIN:  It is 118 units, ten stories.


MS. WONG:  How far along is construction?


MR. MARTIN:  The roof is on, and we're working at boarding the inside of the building.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  And do you have any plans at the moment to put on any other apartment buildings, on that property?


MR. MARTIN:  Yes.  There are three that have site-plan approval from the City of Kingston, and we're about to take out the building permit on the second building.


MS. WONG:  So for a total of four buildings, is that right?


MR. MARTIN:  Total of three buildings on this particular piece.  We do own other lands in the vicinity, where other buildings are in the midst of being proposed.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  Do you have any present information as to how an easement on the laneway might impact on the -- your construction activities?


MR. MARTIN:  Well, there is certainly a perception; and we have already had people enquiring to us that are looking at proposed tenants for the building, that are enquiring about this land, or this line going through and what are the health hazards of this.


We have had -- we were in an area here where -- we've been focussing on this area for probably the last 10 years, acquiring different properties.


We've been in negotiations with different surrounding landowners on this particular -- where this particular line goes through.  We haven't closed any deals, but we have been close on a couple of different scenarios.  With this line, the way it's going through there, it's going to adversely affect what our future plans have been for this area.


MS. WONG:  But you're talking now about other properties that you don't own.  Is that right?


MR. MARTIN:  That's correct.


MS. WONG:  Okay, so I just want you to focus on the properties that you do -- the one property that you do own.  


MR. MARTIN:  Yes?


MS. WONG:  Do you have any information that the transmission line will somehow prevent you, or in any way cause you not to be able to build the units that you want to build?


MR. MARTIN:  I would say as far as building the units, at this point we've got our site plan approval done.  So I would say at this point, no.  But any future development, I don't know what the adverse conditions will be, other than I know there is usually some because of set-backs and whatnot from other easements and right-of-ways.


The other thing that I don't know is the effect this is going to have on people when they go to look at relocating to this area, knowing there is a high transmission or high-voltage transmission line that is very close to them, that's buried in the ground.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  But with respect to this future development you're talking about, that would be future development on land that you don't own yet; is that right?  Because your development plans for the land --


MR. MARTIN:  We own land presently west of this, north of this.  We don't own any land, presently, west of this particular land -- or this particular line that is there right now.  But we have been in discussions with people along that area about, you know, the potential to purchase in the future.


MS. WONG:  Okay.  So the only land you own in this area is the land that we see marked to the right of the transmission line; is that correct?


MR. MARTIN:  Mm-hmm.


MS. WONG:  And you already have your site-plan approval for three units, three buildings on that property?


MR. MARTIN:  Correct.


MS. WONG:  And as far as you know, there will be no impact on the construction of those units?


MR. MARTIN:  At this point, no.  I don't know of any.  However, any future development that we do on this area, will do on this site - and again, there is other vacant land on this site yet - will have an impact and be affected, yes.


MS. WONG:  So you think you might be able to put additional buildings on this site, other than the three units you already have approval for?


MR. MARTIN:  Most definitely we know that, yes.


MS. WONG:  Will those buildings be further to the east?


MR. MARTIN:  The vacant piece of land that we have on this particular piece runs right beside where they're proposing this right-of-way.  So we would be right up against it.


MS. ELLIOTT:  He's indicating to me a section just south of the spur line.


MR. MARTIN:  Just south of the spur line.


MR. RUPERT:  This is the CNR line you're talking about here?


MS. ELLIOTT:  Yes, so the first railway line as you're going up the transmission line.


MS. WONG:  All right.  Thank you.  Those are all of the questions I had, Madam Chair.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  Ms. Campbell.

Cross-Examination by Ms. Campbell 


MS. CAMPBELL:  You mentioned a couple of times "adverse effects".  Could you tell me, list in detail, what the adverse affects are that you are concerned about? 


MR. MARTIN:  Yes.  What happens is, once a right-of-way is established, there are certain set-backs that we're going to have to comply now with, with regard to site-plan approvals of more development of this land.


The other thing that happens -- and that's why I was asking how does the process work if they want to put more power through this line or expand themselves.  We're in a scenario right now where we had a right-of-way that was 20 metres, and now the city has extended that to 30 metres.


It might not seem like a lot, but when you have a very dense area where you're trying to develop, every little metre counts for quite a little bit, as far as trying to locate buildings on there.


So these are some of the adverse effects that we're going to feel with this line going through here.


Not to mention just the perception of people that will be living in this area.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So, if I could just then summarize, what you're saying is there is, first of all, the health perception.  That's one of the issues that you have raised.  So there is a perception, and you are concerned; either it has been expressed to you specifically, or you fear that it will be a perception.  So there have been -- have there been expressions of concern from individuals who would have rented from you, but for?


MR. MARTIN:  There have been expressions of concerns from people that are calling in, asking about these apartments and asking about where does this line lie within the property there.


Have they went on to tell us that:  Well, they're not going to rent because it is there?  They haven't.  But they are concerned about where that line is going to lie, and the potential -- because they don't know themselves -- of what are the effects of this transmission line.


MS. CAMPBELL:  So that could affect your business, so to speak?


MR. MARTIN:  Very much so.  That's our concern.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  The next thing that you listed was the right-of-way, and what you talked about was the fact that once the right-of-way goes in, that affects set-backs.  Set-backs, in turn, affect where you can site buildings that you intend on building in the future, and how you can develop that land?


MR. MARTIN:  Yes.  That's correct, and the size of the buildings.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  The third thing I heard you state was that the city has increased the right-of-way from 20 metres, which is sought by Canadian Renewable.  The City of Kingston has increased that from 20 metres to 30 metres?


MR. MARTIN:  That's not for this particular piece.  This is another development that we're involved with, in another area of the city, where someone came in.  They wanted to put a temporary right-of-way through a particular piece of land we had.  And as it turns out, there is no such thing as temporary.  They're all permanent.


What happens is, once these get in here, they seem to grow.  And that's why, I guess for me, I was hoping that let's grow it beside what's already there.  Let's not open up a new right-of-way area where, again, that will grow from there yet again.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  So if I could just clarify:  When you talked about the city increasing a 20-metre right-of-way to 30 metres, it's not this particular right-of-way?


MR. MARTIN:  That is correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  All right.  So your concern there is you anticipate or you speculate that could happen? 


MR. MARTIN:  Yes, that is correct.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Not that it has happened, but it could happen?


MR. MARTIN:  That is correct, yes.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Thank you.  Those are my questions.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell.


Mr. Martin, I just have one question for you.

Questions from the Board


MS. CHAPLIN:  You have spoken of your concerns.  Have you been a participant in the environmental-review process, as well?


MR. MARTIN:  To the best of my ability, yes.


MS. CHAPLIN:  So you made your concerns known through that process, as well?  Or you will be, when you have the opportunity?


MR. MARTIN:  Well, I have spoken to Mr. Miller and told him of our concerns, and came up with solutions where we could, realign this.  And I know there has been other people that have done the same thing and they have made those adjustments, but, for some reason - and, again, from what I can understand, it deals with costs - they're not willing to realign this one.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay.  Oh, Mr. Rupert has a question.


MR. RUPERT:  I want to make sure, given your illustrations about rights-of-way widths on other projects that I am back on this project.  Am I right that this is a five-metre-wide easement after construction is completed?  Is that what the applicant is looking for?


MS. WONG:  Ten-metre wide.


MR. RUPERT:  Is the permanent easement ten?  I must have misunderstood the application.  I thought it was ten during construction and five would be the sort of permanent easement.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Perhaps you would like to step forward to a microphone.  It is easier for the reporter.


MR. J. MILLER:  Originally, there was a five-metre permanent easement, with five metres for construction.  It just was cleaner and easier just to negotiate a permanent ten-metre-wide easement, which is cleaner.


MR. RUPERT:  Okay.


MR. MILLER:  It allowed us to put the transmission line in the centre of that 10-metre-wide easement to give us 5 metres to either side.


MR. RUPERT:  All right, thanks.


MS. WONG:  Just to be clear, Mr. Rupert, nearly -- all of that will be south of -- or to the west of Mr. Martin's land except for that small portion going over the laneway.


MR. RUPERT:  Right.


MS. WONG:  When we were talking about concerns about set-backs and things like that.


MR. RUPERT:  Right.  Okay, thanks.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Ms. Elliott, do you have any further questions?


MS. ELLIOTT:  No, thank you.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you.  Thank you, Mr. Martin.  


I believe that concludes the evidentiary portion of today's proceedings.


We just have final submissions.  Ms. Wong, would you be intending to make sort of opening submissions or closing submissions?


MS. WONG:  My submissions will be very short, Madam Chair, so I'm thinking we might just want to continue and finish before lunch, if that is appropriate.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Ricchetti, do you intend to make any submissions?


MR. RICCHETTI:  None at all.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Miller from Kingston?


MR. MILLER:  No.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Ms. Campbell, will you have any submissions?


MS. CAMPBELL:  What I thought I would do is, before everybody made their submissions, just briefly visit the law that applies to set the framework; in other words, provide a very brief synopsis of the law that applies, so that if any of the -- those who wish to make submissions take issue with anything I say, they have an opportunity to address or supplement what I have to say now.


MS. CHAPLIN:  So you would go after Ms. Wong.


Ms. Elliott, would you have closing submissions?


MS. ELLIOTT:  I have some submissions.  I don't think they will be terribly long, about 10, 15 minutes, perhaps, if I drag it out.  I will try not to, though.  Lawyers never know how long they will be.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Right.  Right.  I'm just sort of aware of the time.  Perhaps, Ms. Wong, you would want to do your submissions, and then perhaps we will break for lunch to give people an opportunity to --


MS. WONG:  I understood that Ms. Campbell wanted to go first, though.


MS. NOWINA:  Do you want to go before Ms. Wong?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Yes, I would do it at the beginning.  Before I do that, I would like to clean up one of the undertakings.


It was agreed that the whole series of the 500 drawings, from 501 to 505, should be updated, and the undertaking as currently framed is simply for 505.  So I would like it clarified that undertaking K2 is now to file the updated series of 500 drawings, to remove the error that indicates a transmission line where there in fact should be a distribution line.


MS. CHAPLIN:  That's fine.  We will make that undertaking.  

UNDERTAKING NO. K2 (AMENDED):  TO FILE AN UPDATED SERIES OF 500 DRAWINGS


Ms. Campbell, what is your preference, to break now for lunch, or would you like to go ahead?


MS. CAMPBELL:  I can do this in five minutes.  The only reason for doing it is just simply to bring us back to the context of the decision that has to be made, lay it out, so that if Ms. Wong or Ms. Elliott take issue with my -- the statements that I make concerning the applicable law, they have an ability to do so after hearing me.


Speaking not so quickly that the reporter will get mad with me, but quickly enough that I can get this done in under five minutes, I will start.

Submissions by Ms. Campbell


MS. CAMPBELL:  As was indicated by the chair at the beginning of this hearing, the section under which this application is brought and will be decided is section 92(1).  Section 92(1) indicates that the Board must provide an order granting leave to construct if an applicant wishes to construct, expand or reinforce an electricity transmission line, which is, of course, this case.


Section 94 indicates that any applicant must file a route map, and there's certainly been more than sufficient evidence to indicate that we have route maps galore.


MR. RUPERT:  Ms. Campbell, I wonder if it would be possible to speak closer to the mike.  I am missing, I think, a few words.


MS. CHAPLIN:  I don't know if the volume can be lifted a bit.  They're enjoying their lunch next door and making it a bit difficult.


MS. CAMPBELL:  They certainly sound like they're not eating.  It sounds like a bit of a cocktail party.  We might want to go there over lunch.


All right, continuing on.  I was just addressing the fact that the criteria, when you apply under section 92(1) for a leave to construct, in this case the construction of an electricity transmission line, requires, among other things:

"the filing under section 94 of a map showing the general location of the proposed work in the municipalities, highways, railways, utility lines and navigable waters through, under, over, upon or across which the proposed work is to pass."


That makes me think of Sesame Street.


After the material is filed, which, as I said previously, there is an abundance of route maps here, section 96 is where the order is actually granted.  In this particular case, because it deals with electricity, the application is refined by the application of 96(2).  96(1) says:

"If after considering an application under section 90, 91 or 92 the Board is of the opinion that the construction, expansion or reinforcement of the proposed work is in the public interest, it shall make an order granting leave to carry out the work."


Specifically with regard to applications under section 92, which this is, section 96(2) states:

"The Board shall only consider the interests of consumers with respect to prices and the reliability and quality of electricity service when under subsection 1 it considers whether the construction, expansion or reinforcement of the electricity transmission line or electricity distribution line or the making of the connection is in the public interest."


So 96(2) refines and narrows the definition of public interest when considering leave-to-construct applications under section 92.


The final matter that is addressed by the legislation indicates that in an application under section 92:

"Leave to construct shall not be granted until the applicant satisfies the Board that it has offered or will offer to each owner of land affected by the approved route or location an agreement in a form approved by the Board."


I simply point out the language there is: "has offered or will offer to each owner of land"; in other words, past and future.  And there has been, just to refresh the memory of the Board, there was a recent decision of the Board in which there was a statement concerning the role of the Board when considering the form of an agreement.  


Obviously, this Panel is not bound by the decisions of other panels, but may take notice of statements that have been made, and I offer it to you for your review.


I will simply indicate that it is from the Portlands Energy decision, the Portlands Energy Centre decision that was made by this Board, released on June 1st.  There is simply a precis on what the Board looks at when it looks at a standard offer, section 97.  That is found on page 10.  


Simply for clarification, I will give the Board Members a copy and hand a copy to my friends.  If I could refer you simply to page 10, there is a full paragraph --


MS. NOWINA:  Sorry, Ms. Campbell, what page?


MS. CAMPBELL:  Page 10.  There is a full paragraph that starts "When considering":

"When considering the standard-form agreement to be offered to affected landowners, the Board considers the agreement anew and in the context of the application in which it has been filed.  The Board approves a standard-form agreement which represents the initial offering to the affected landowner.  Once the Board is satisfied with the standard-form agreement..." 

and in this case the Board is satisfied with the form as filed by Enbridge, 

"...the parties are free to negotiate whatever terms they believe to be necessary to protect their specific interests.  The Board does not become involved in the detailed negotiation of the clauses in the agreements between one landowner and the applicant.  It is also accepted that a review by this Board under Section 97 does not extend to the amount of compensation, or the structure of compensation arrangements."


That brings to an end the brief overview that I intended to give the Panel of the legal framework in which the decision is made.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you, Ms. Campbell. 


Ms. Wong, would you like to go now, or would you like to wait until after lunch?


MS. WONG:  I think I can go now.  If the Board is prepared to sit till 1:15, we might just get it all wrapped up before lunch.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Why don't you proceed?

Submissions by Ms. Wong


MS. WONG:  I don't have any complaints with Ms. Campbell's summary of the law.  I did just want to point out a couple of things arising out of Section 96.  


Section 96(1) is a mandatory provision.  It provides that if the Board finds that the construction is in the public interest, the Board shall make an Order.


And then subsection 2 goes on to provide the legislative mandate that you are only to consider the public interest as it relates to prices and reliability and quality of the electricity service.


So if you find that the evidence presented has demonstrated that the transmission line is in the public interest of consumers, in that it will increase the quality of electricity service to the province and the reliability and price, then my submission is you have no choice but to approve the leave to construct, because that is the requirement of the statute.


Mr. Martin has raised some issues today about his concerns involving compensation, his concerns regarding environmental concerns, as to the potential - and he has no evidence - the potential of emissions from the line.


My submission is that both of those concerns are for other tribunals; they're not for you. 


The environmental concerns are for the environmental reviewing authorities. 


The compensation concerns are for the Ontario Municipal Board, if it is necessary to expropriate.


Your function is to find whether or not this route is in the public interest of all consumers of electricity.  My submission is the evidence is ample to support that conclusion.


I don't propose to go through it all again.  The witnesses took you through it this morning, but just to touch on the issues list.  As far as the need for the project, there is a contract with the OPA requiring CREC to build the plant and deliver the electricity to the provincial grid.


My submission is that the fact that they participated in the RFP process, that they were one of the winning bidders, is in itself evidence of the benefit to the province.  The OPA's job is to acquire contracts in the interests of the province.


As far as the reliability of the lines, the appropriateness of the route, all of that has been dealt with by the IESO and Hydro One and the induced voltage study.  There is absolutely no evidence there will be any negative or adverse impacts on the system reliability, and no evidence whatsoever that anything being proposed in any way has any safety concerns.


All of the provincial standards will be met; all of the provincial safety standards will be met.


As far as consultation, there has been a lot of consultation.  You have a lot of evidence on that.  A lot of consultation with the First Nations and that is ongoing, as well.


I believe those are all of the major points that are in the Issues list, so my submission is that in the face of no evidence to the contrary, the Board really is required by Section 96 to grant leave to construct.


Those are all of my submissions.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Ms. Elliott, are you prepared -- 


MS. ELLIOTT:  I will get us through, so you don't have to come back after lunch.  

Submissions by Ms. Elliott


MS. ELLIOTT:  I think it is interesting, in response to Mr. Martin's concern about expansion of rights-of-ways and easements, and the set-back dialogue he had, that it turns out this right-of-way expanded already from five metres to ten.  


It is a legitimate concern.  It is the reason we wanted to talk about going up Gardiners Road, until we found the typo, because if there is an existing right-of-way, people want to use it, to be the least disruptive.


There is no doubt, in my mind, that if this goes across his property, it has great potential to expand, for who knows what is going to be invented next.  I have lost track.


So I think it is just interesting that it has expanded in the course of this application.  It is not a stretch to say it could easily expand further.


Having said that, I wanted to talk -- make submissions more about conditions, because I see a bit of writing on the wall here, as does Mr. Martin.  I accept the law as 

Ms. Campbell has stated it.


I am grateful for the case to which she referred us, the Portland case, at page 10.  I am just flipping the page to which she referred us.


The paragraph in the middle says that:

"When you consider the standard-form agreement, you consider it anew and in the context of the application in which it has been filed."


Now, this may not be a contentious point with Ms. Wong and her client.  We haven't really fully explored it, but the form of agreement which came out Friday -- I think, the revised one, the transmission easement I'm talking about, the easement agreement -- was substantially the same as the one that is at tab 16 of the prefiled evidence.


I will just make sure that is where it is.


MS. WONG:  It is at tab 16, yes.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Tab 16.  The content of that agreement, and I am not going to ask you to wordsmith it, I am not suggesting that for one moment, and I wouldn't.  But paragraph 1 talks about -- the fourth line down of paragraph 1 in the middle: "alter and enlarge and expand the easement".  So it is provided for in this draft agreement. 


In the context of this hearing, Mr. Miller, I believe it was -- the CREC Mr. Miller, not the Utilities Kingston one -- said they wouldn't be expanding it.  So I would feel better if the standard-form agreement was approved without language enabling that kind of expansion to be present. 


It is fine while it is all fresh in our minds, but this is an easement in perpetuity.  And if the words in the standard-form agreement permit expansion and enlargement, I am not so sure it will be fresh in everyone's mind that there was an indication that no such activity would take place.


So I would rather see and submit to you that the paperwork and the agreement you are going to approve should be in that context, the same as the evidence you have heard.


The similar point that gives me pause is paragraph four of that document, which gives the -- it seems to, in a back-ended way, give the transferee the right to "install additional electric transmission services"; that is the phrase I have highlighted.


It is just a variation on altering and enlarging.  I didn't see where that right was actually given, and I didn't dissect this agreement by any means, but those words: "install additional electric transmission services", I would submit, certainly shouldn't have the word "right". They shouldn't have the right to do it, in this document.


They can have all of the rights they want coming back before the Board, but in the easement agreement -- which is a document I am familiar with and the language of which I understand -- it is language that is inconsistent with the statements made today, and the evidence about not doing so.


So I would submit that it would be nice for the form of agreement to be restricted to the project at hand, which is -- won't be expanding, altering or adding additional lines.


In terms of other possible conditions, as we we're looking at the Utilities Kingston conditions, we kind of liked them and wondered if we could get the same, relatively speaking, the same conditions.  I'm sorry, I don't know what tab it is at, but it is Ms. Wong's letter of September 21st.  It was recently received, so it is probably not in a tab.  

As you heard Mr. Martin submit, the condition he would -- well, the condition.  It's a pretty big condition.  The condition he would prefer is a different route.  Without that condition, he would ask that where it crosses his land the line be bored, if he has already completed the asphalt and surfacing of which he spoke.


So that it is a bit of a timing issue.  And he would like it bored under, because he does have three apartment buildings going in there and the land being developed, and we don't know what delays, environmental or otherwise, were going to happen to this project.  I would submit that if Mr. Martin has to proceed with his site plan and finish it to satisfy the city, it's only fair that they bore under the land at that location.


If he hasn't finished it, you know, he will not need that.  He's happy to have the trench.  So I am not entirely sure how to word that as a condition, I'm afraid, but the sense of it is pretty straightforward.  I think if he has to finish the location because of his own site-plan approval in the normal course, he should be accommodated by not having it ripped up and patched over.


In terms of the Utilities Kingston conditions themselves, it is really -- I hadn't realized this.  I hadn't looked at their conditions, because they were their conditions, but it is really the questions I was asking about process.  I would submit that we could substitute R. Paul Martin Construction, in terms of "satisfying reasonable requirements of R. Paul Martin Construction Company as to acceptable design and construction activity."


And instead of "adjacent to existing road", it is on his road we're talking about, on the right-of-way road there.


I accept that they will be within the engineering-construction practices, and in the event of a dispute -- and I appreciate it would be -- I won't get into the jurisdiction argument, but I would be surprised that you had the jurisdiction.  But we're not looking to come back to the Board if there was some sort of dispute.  


We would be happy if CREC was to go to somebody like the City of Kingston, who has to opine on both the site plan and has some control over the location of the other requirements.


I frankly can't see how Mr. Martin is going to have a reasonable requirement that couldn't be met, but the demolition detail, we're lacking at much detail as the City of Kingston, and these conditions would give us some comfort that we wouldn't be accidentally overlooked as being a little guy; that the process that isn't really laid out anywhere would include talking to Mr. Martin as the first Utilities Kingston-style one; showing him the engineering-construction specifications, which is the second Utilities Kingston one; providing him with the as-built drawings within 30 days, which is the third Utilities Kingston one; and giving him advance notice, five days.  You need two or three.  If five days is too many for some reason, maybe three business days' advance notice when they're going to start construction activity.  Because he is doing construction there, as well.  There may be coordinating.  


I hope that would unfold in the normal course, but if the city needs it as a condition, perhaps we do.  We would certainly feel better to know what's happening there.


And I mentioned the amended standard-form easement.  


The last condition, and it may be a matter of course in your process - I'm sorry, I didn't think to ask it - is there will be monitoring of the line.  If a breach is found in the line north of Bath Road where Mr. Martin's buildings are, I hope it's a condition or a requirement somewhere that he's advised of the breach and the steps taken to correct it.  


The last thing he wants is to hear it from a tenant, who also happens to be married to somebody at the Public Works Department, whatever it is called now, who knows that this occurred.  So as the landowner and landlord, having him suitably notified.  


Hopefully no such breach ever occurs, but I think it would make him feel better about using the land to know that whoever is on top of the monitoring shares it with him immediately if it impacts that area north of Bath Road.


Those are our submissions.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Thank you, Ms. Elliott.  Ms. Wong, are you prepared to provide your final submissions now?


MS. WONG:  Can I have five minutes to speak to my client on what Ms. Elliott's last submissions were, just to get a sense of their response?


MS. NOWINA:  Will five minutes be sufficient or shall we --


MS. WONG:  I think so.  Five minutes should be sufficient.  Thank you.  Then I would expect I would be only a couple of minutes in reply.


MS. CHAPLIN:  We will stay here and you can --


MS. WONG:  Go outside.


MS. CHAPLIN:  It's probably fewer people to be moved.


--- Ms. Wong and witness panel withdraw from hearing room.


MS. WONG:  I think I can do that in two minutes.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Okay, we're back on.

Submissions by Ms. Wong 


MS. WONG:  Thank you.  With respect to the easement form at tab 16, my understanding is that Mr. Martin and his counsel, in paragraph 1, would like to have the words "enlarge" and "expand" deleted, and CREC doesn't have any difficulty with that.  We will concede that.


MS. CHAPLIN:  I think it was also "and make additions to".


MS. WONG:  That's fine, as well, "and make additions to".


I frankly haven't spent much time thinking about what the changes would be to paragraph 4, if it needs to be taken out altogether or if we need to keep some of that.


My submission would be that CREC would probably need a temporary easement in the event that it needs to make any repairs to the line, and we would like to keep that in the form.  But to the extent that we're removing any right to do enlargements or expansions, that clause 4 may need to be amended, but we would like to keep a right for temporary easement in the event of a repair being made.


With respect to the draft conditions that Ms. Elliott requested, CREC has no problem agreeing to provide the detailed engineering drawings, which would be number 2, and providing stamped engineering drawings, which is number 3, and providing a minimum of five business days' notice prior to start of construction activity.


So 2, 3 and 4 are acceptable to the applicant.


With respect to number 1, which is satisfying the reasonable requirements of Mr. Martin for construction and design, our submission would be that there are already a plethora of specifications and designs that have been implemented by the province and by the city, and, if we meet those standards, that would be sufficient protection for Mr. Martin and there is nothing to be gained by having Mr. Martin have that kind of authority over this project, that is sufficient if we meet all of the publicly required standards.


I believe those are all of the things my friends raised.


MS. ELLIOTT:  Monitoring, and advising us of breaches?


MS. WONG:  As far as monitoring and advising of breaches, if there are any breaches on his land, obviously we will have to let him know, because we will need to come on the land to make changes.


With respect to any other breaches that might occur anywhere else along the route, frankly, the concern is five or ten years from now -- putting a procedure in place to let Mr. Martin know would be a difficult thing to do.


If it's on his land, he will need to know and we will obviously have to give him notice at that point.  But for the rest of the route, it would just be a difficult procedure to implement, and not really necessary.


MS. CHAPLIN:  So, Ms. Wong, are you proposing, will you file a further modified schedule for the easement in gross?


MS. WONG:  Yes.  Making those changes.


MS. CHAPLIN:  Mr. Rupert has a question.


MR. RUPERT:  In paragraph 1, section 1 of the agreement, in addition to the words, I think, "enlarge, expand, make additions to" that you referred to, there is a bunch of other language, probably standard language to do with overhead wires.  It talks about cables, attaching cables to trees, it talks about guys and brace poles.  


Entirely aside from the point that Mr. Martin and 

Ms. Elliott have raised, it is with hindsight a bit strange to see a standard agreement for an underground line have all of that overhead stuff in it.  Would you look at that when you're doing this version, this revised version again to see whether you really need that?


MS. WONG:  If the Board would like us to do that, we certainly can.  I mean, you're right.  Obviously this was a standard form for all easements, regarding above-ground or underground.  We could have a look at that and try to cut this down to just an underground easement.


MR. RUPERT:  I'm assuming that if, in the future, someone wanted to take and put up overhead poles and wires, that would require a new application to this Board.


MS. WONG:  It would, that's correct.


MR. RUPERT:  So an easement that provides for that would be of little value, in any event, I would have thought, without the Board's approval.


MS. WONG:  Well, it would only be of value in that we would have to get leave to construct, but if we had an easement in this form, we wouldn't necessarily need to go out and get a new easement agreement.  We would already have an easement agreement in place.


MR. RUPERT:  Right.  Okay.  Well, if you could look at that when you're doing this revision, to see what changes you might make.


MS. CAMPBELL:  Just to pick up on that.  Can we give that an undertaking number and make that K.3, so that we have a clean record?  It is the undertaking to file the revised easement agreement that reflects the changes that CREC is prepared to make to that easement agreement in response to the request made by Mr. Martin and Mr. Martin's counsel.  Thank you.


MS. WONG:  Yes.

UNDERTAKING NO. K.3:  TO FILE A REVISED EASEMENT AGREEMENT


MS. CHAPLIN:  If there is nothing further, I believe that concludes our proceedings for today.  I would like to thank all of the parties.


MS. WONG:  Madam Chair, my client has asked me to make one request.


In the hope that the application will be approved, my client has asked me to ask if the Board could deal with it as expeditiously as possible, because they do need to get the leave to construct in order to go on the land to start geotechnical testing and doing other things that will be necessary to complete other portions of the project.   


MS. NOWINA:  Yes.  We will certainly do everything we can to render our decision on a timely basis.


MS. WONG:  Thank you.


MS. CHAPLIN:  If there is nothing further, we are adjourned.


MS. WONG:  Thank you. 

--- Whereupon the hearing concluded at 1:18 p.m.
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